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DEPARTMENT OF ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES
CITYOFCEDARFALL' IOWA
220 CLAY STREET
CEDAR FALLS, IOWA 50613
PHONE: 319-273-8600
FAX: 319-268-5126

November 22,2010

To Mayor Crews, Members of the City Counciland Citizens of the City of Cedar Falls:

I am pleased to submit to you the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa,
for the year ended June 30, 2010. This is the eighth CAFR compieted in complianc" *¡tn the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34 (GASB 34). Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data and
the completeness and fairness of the presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the City. To the best of our
knowledge and belief, the enclosed data is accurate in all material respects and is reporled in a manner designed
to present fairly the financial position and results of operations of the City. All disclosures necessary to enable the
reader to gain an understanding of the City's financial activities have beên included.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to accompany the basic
financial statements in the form of Management's Diqcussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is
designed to complement MD&A and,should be read irt conjunction with it. The City of Cedar Falls' MD&A can be
found immediately following the reporl of the independent auditors.

The City is required to undergo an' annual single audit in conformity with the provisions of the U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133, "Audits of St,ates, Local Governments, and Nonprofit
Organi2ations." lnformation to comply with OMB Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Nonprofit Organizations," and "Government Auditing Standards" is included in,another repoft under a separate
cover.

The City of Cedar Falls provides many municipal services including fire and police protection; streets, garbage
collection, parks, recreation, culturai añs,.planning, zoning, general administration, and sewer and storm water
services' For financial reporting purposes, all funds; aõenc¡es, boards, commissions, trusts and authorities
involved in the, provision of these services are included if the City is financially accountable. Financial
accountability is determined by several different factors, including fiscal dåpendence, aUiiitf t" ¡rp".J*¡tt uion tne
entity:s governing body, provision of specific financial burdeirs or benefits and separate legal entit¡r status. Rfter
careful evaluation of these factors, the City has included in this financial report the CeOar fãlts gtectr¡c Utility, Gas
Utility, Water Utilit¡r, and. Communications Utilit¡r, as wefl as all funds of the City. The U-tilities are each reported as
discretely presented component units.

-OUR CITZENS ARE OUR BUSINESS'I



GOVERNMENTAL STRUCTURE

The City has operated under the mayor-council form of government since incorporation. Policy-making and

legislative authority are vested in the governing council, which consists of seven members. The City Council is

responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget, setting goals, and approving mayor-

appointed committees. The full-time mayor is responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the City

Council, for overseeing the day{o-day operations of the City, and for appointing department directors. The mayor

and Council are elected on a nonpartisan basis. The Council consists of two council members elected at large and

one council member elected from each of the five wards as established by ordinance, elected for terms of four

years. The mayor is elected at large and to a two-year term.

ECONOMIC CONDITION AND OUTLOOK

The City, incorporated in 1854, is located in the northeastern part of the state, has a land area of 28.9 square miles

and a population of 36,145. The City is empowered to levy a property tax on both real and personal property

located within its boundaries, and has the power by state statute to extend its corporate limits by annexation, which

is seldom done, but will be done when deemed appropriate by the City Council.

The economic condition and outlook of Cedar Falls continues to be strong. The Cedar Falls economy was insulated

from many of the impacts created by the recent recession due to the growth and stability of the University of

Nofthern lowa and a diverse service business sector.

The Greater Cedar Valley Alliance was formed in the metro area to organize the human resources and generate

needed development capital to attract new business and industry to the area and to encourage expansion of

businesses already in the area. As a result, many new businesses have located offices and plants in the metro

area. Target Corporation constructed a distribution center with an assessed value of approximately $+S million in
FY02 and in FY08 completed a second refrigeration center. The Cedar Falls lndustrial and Technology Park

continues to show tremendous expansion.

The increase in new businesses and expansion of established firms has had a positive effect on employment and

the City's tax base. Historically, Cedar Falls' unemployment rate has closely followed the State trends, which are

significantly lower than the nation's unemployment rate (See Attachment A). This is due to the strong service

employment base supported by the state university located in Cedar Falls. Since the devaluation of property in
1986-1988, Cedar Falls has had steady growth in property values. Assessed values increased in FY11 by $0S

million, however taxable values only increased by almost $36 million (See Attachment B) due to the residential

rollback.

The City has responded to a portion of this challenge by maintaining a comparatively low tax rate. Cedar Falls has

the fifth lowest tax rate per capita of the twenty largest cities in the state of lowa (See Attachment C). This low rate

can be attributed to the efforts of the City to streamline operations over the past twenty years. This has been

accomplished by maintaining the approximate same number of employees, even when demand for service has

increased. Cedar Falls had one of the lowest number of full{ime employees per 1,000 residents in FY10. (See

Attachment D).
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Over the past ten years Cedar Falls' residential housing sales prices have significantly increased. ln 1999, the

average sales price repoded was $125,052. ln 2009, the average sales price was $207,754, which is a sixty-six
(66) percent increase in the past ten years. These statistics indicate that Cedar Falls' local economy is sound and

there is a strong market for Cedar Falls homes (See Attachment E).

Housing values have surged f rom the recession and devaluation of the mid-1980's to values that once again place

the homeowners living in Cedar Falls in an advantageous market position. This market growth is a credit to

businesses, the school system, utilities, and quality of City services in Cedar Falls. Each entity has worked

together to strengthen the local economy, create jobs, and improve Cedar Falls' quality of life.

MAJOR EVENT

2008 Flood: ln June 2008, the City of Cedar Falls along with eighty (80) percent of the State of lowa experienced

a devastating flood. At 2:00 am, June 11th, the Cedar River crested at 102.13 ft., nearly six feet above the previous

record. Thousands of volunteers worked to sandbag the levee, homes, and places vulnerable to flooding. Cedar

Falls was fortunate in that the levee that protects our downtown area did hold, unfoftunately, however, nofthern

Cedar Falls was completely flooded. Approximately 570 homes were affected by the flood. Many of these homes

were completely damaged and many residents will be seeking buyouts under the Federal Emergency Management

Agency (FEMA) buyout program.

ln addition to the residents flooded in northern Cedar Falls, the dike around the Cedar Falls Utility generation plant

failed. Fortunately water, communication, electric, and gas services were still provided during most of this disaster,
Another city facility that was also affected was the Public Works Complex. This complex houses the City's street,

traffic, refuse, and vehicle maintenance operations. Therefore, these facilities did sustain considerable losses.

Fortunately, volunteer efforts to fortify the levee around the sewage treatment plant succeeded in preserving

sewage treatment for the entire city.

ln addition to the Public Works Complex, some of the City's streets, parks, trails, and one golf course also
sustained damage. The estimated costs of damage sustained to public facilities and infrastructure was $3 million.

At the end of FY08, approximately $1 million of this had been spent. ln FY09 and FY10, another approximately

$1 .6 million was spent. The remainder of the costs to repair and rebuild will occur in FY1 1 . Also, starting in FY10,

the buyout of approximately 150 flood-damaged homes and businesses began. The City has secured funding for
this buyout process either through FEMA, Jumpstart, or Community Block Grant.

MAJOR ¡NITIATIVES

Northern Cedar Falls Development:

Northern Cedar Falls lndustrial Park - For the past fifteen years, the concept for a Northern lndustrial Park has

been considered, however, the biggest challenge was funding for the needed infrastructure improvements. After
the 2008 Flood, a grant for infrastructure improvements was available from the U.S. Department of Commerce.
The grant was for flood related economic programs to impacted communities. The City of Cedar Falls was
awarded a $5.5 million grant. This grant allowed the City to move ahead with the Northern lndustrial Park at a total
project cost of $8.5 million. The City purchased 103 acres of land located north of the river and along Highway 218.

The City then hired an engineering firm to design the grading and infrastructure layout.
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The unique feature of the Northern lndustrial Park is the access to rail service. lt is the only site in Cedar Falls that

can provide rail access and will allow the City to market to different types of companies. The first occupant of the

northern industrial park will be a co-op that was severely affected by the 2008 Flood. This will allow the co-op to

move out of the floodplain and have its necessary rail access. The completion date of the Park is expected in Fall,

2011. The City will continue to market companies to this new Northern lndustrial Park. The City believes it will

have great economic opportunities which were not available before due to the location of the Park next to the

highway, rail access, and its proximity to a municipal airport.

North Cedar and Center Street - ln addition to the development of the lndustrial Park in noñhern Cedar Falls, the

City is also looking at redeveloping a section of the city commonly referred to as "Notth Ceda/'. This area is also

located north of the river and was severely impacted by the 2008 Flood. As part of that redevelopment, the City

has been working with a firm to create a design framework plan for the North Cedar Area which includes the Center

Street Corridor, North Cedar Neighborhood, and the East District or "Cedar City" area. The intent of the plan is to

reflect the community's values and aspirations in shaping an identity and seizing new opportunities for improving

the area.

This study builds on the recommendations for future development, floodplain regulations, and the appearance of

the Center Street Corridor. The firm looked at the economic outlook of the area, including a market and

transpofiation study. The market analysis looked at projected commercial and residential development, current

trends in number of households, and available land for development. The transpoftation analysis looked at

average annual daily traffic counts. The project objectives of the study are:

. Create a Design Framework Plan of the Nofth Cedar/Center Street Area to guide public and private

improvements.

¡ lntegrate public and private improvements into a mutually supportive plan consistent with the vision of the

community.

o Build on the recommendation defined by the Northern Cedar Falls Reuse and Redevelopment Visioning

Plan and the EPA workshops.

o Develop a realistic 20-25 year plan based on solid population estimates, market research and traffic
projections.

o Create a special area plan that may be adopted as part of the comprehensive plan.

. lmplementationof Recommendations.

ACCOUNTING SYSTEMS AND BUDGETARY CONTROL

ln developing and evaluating the City's accounting control system, consideration is given to the adequacy of

internal accounting controls. Accounting control comprises the plan of organization and the procedures and

records that are concerned with the safeguarding of assets and the reliability of financial records and consequently

are designed to provide reasonable assurance that:

o Transactions are executed in accordance with management's general or specific authorizations.
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. Transactions are recorded as necessary (1) to permit preparation of financial statements in conformity with

generally accepted accounting principles or any other criteria, such as finance-related legal and contractual

compliance requirements applicable to such statements, and (2) to maintain accountability for assets.

. Access to assets is permitted only in accordance to management's authorization.

o The recorded accountability for assets is compared with the existing assets at reasonable intervals and

appropriate action is taken with respect to any differences.

The definition of accounting control comprehends reasonable, but not absolute, assurance that the objectives

expressed in it will be accomplished by the system. The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that the cost
of internal controls should not exceed the benefits. The benefit consists of reductions in the risk of failing to

achieve the objectives implicit in the definition of accounting control.

All internal control evaluations occur within the above framework. We believe that the City's internal accounting
controls adequately safeguard assets and provide reasonable assurance of proper recording of financial
transactions.

ln accordance with the State of lowa, the City has formally established budgetary accounting control for its

operating funds. Budgetary control is maintained at the function level (Public Safety, Public Works, Health and

Social Services, Culture and Recreation, Community and Economic Development, General Government, Debt

Service, Capital Projects, and Business-Type activities). The City has adhered to these budgetary laws.

INDEPENDENT AUDIT

Eide Bailly, LLP, a firm of independent public accountants has audited the financial records, books of account and

transactions of the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, and their opinion is included in the Financial
Section of this report. The financial statements are the responsibility of the City. The responsibility of the

independent public accountants is to express an opinion on the City's financial statements based on their audit. An

audit is conducted in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require that
the audit be planned and pedormed in a manner to obtain a reasonable assurance as to whether the financial
statements are free of material misstatement.

AWARDS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of

Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Cedar Falls for its comprehensive annual financial
report (CAFR) for the year ended June 30, 2009. The Certificate of Achievement is a prestigious national award
recognizing conformance with the highest standards for preparation of state and local government financial reports.

ln order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and

efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report, whose contents conform to program standards. The
CAFR must satisfy both accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The City of Cedar Falls has received a

Certificate of Achievement for the last twenty consecutive years (fiscal years ended 1990-2009). We believe our
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current report continues to conform to the Certificate of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting

it to GFOA.

ln addition, the City received the GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget Presentation for its annual appropriated

budget beginning July 1, 2009. ln order to qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the City's

budget document was judged to be proficient in several categories including policy documentation, financial

planning, and organization. The City of Gedar Falls has received the GFOA's Award for Distinguished Budget

Presentation for the last seventeen years.

ACKNOWLEDGMENTS

The preparation of this report could not be accomplished without the efficient and dedicated service of the entire

staff of the Financial Services Division, particularly Lisa Roeding, Finance Associate and Cathy Niebergall,
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preparation of this report. I would also like to thank the members of the City Council for their continued interest and

support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the City in a responsible and prudent manner.

CPA, CPFO
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ATTACHMENT A

Cedar Falls has consistently
remained below Waterloo and

nation's unemployment
rates.

Historically Cedar Falls'
unemployment rate has closely
followed the State trends.
Cedar Falls is insulated from
many of the economic problems
in the Metro area due to a strong
service employment base

Month
09-1 0

Cedar Falls
(ln %)

Waterloo
(ln %)

lowa
(ln %)

U.S.
(ln %)

July
Aug
sep
Oct
Nov
Dec
Jan
Feb
Mar
Apr
May
June

4.1
4.1
3.8
4.2
3.6
4.1
4.4
4.5
4.5
4.4
4.0
4.7

7.2
6.6
6.5
9.4
6.8
7.6
8.3
8.2
8.2
8.2
7.3
7.6

6.1
6.3
6.4
6.5
6.5
6.5
6.6
6.7
6.8
6.9
6.8
6.7

9.4
9.7
9.8

10.1
10.0
10.0
9.7
9.7
9.7
9.9
9.7
9.5

Average 4.2 7.7 6.6 9.8

-7-



ATTACHMENT Btaxvaluel l

Taxable Valuations FY01 -FYl I
Gity of Gedar Falls

3,000,000,000

2,500,000,000

2,000,000,000

1,500,000,000

1,000,000,000

500,000,000

0

FYOI FYO2 FYO3 FYO4 FYOs FYO6 FYOT FYOS FYOg . FYIO FY11

ËTaxable Value @Assessed Value

FYOl

FYO2

FYO3

FYO4

FYOS

FYO6

FYOT

FYOS

FYO9

FYlO
FYI 1

722,070,299
747,955,311
794,505,253
817,896,980
903,439,479
920,739,030
985,250,869

1,018,530,684
1,098,295,277
1,150,078,051
1,185,969,161

1 ,161 ,812,891
1,188,336,276
1,374,429,803
1,427,127,146
1,673,902,007
1,737,456,552
1,931,758,484
2,013,812,356
2,252,421,925
2,336,M6,915
2,402,107,961

The last ten years have provided a

steady growth trend in assessed

valuations. ln addition, FY08 was the first
r that assessed values have exceeded

$2 billion and taxable values have

$1 billion.

For FY11, assessed values increased

by $65,461,M6. However, taxable
values only increased by $35,891,1 10

due mostly to the change in the residential

rollback factor to 46.91o/o for FY11.
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ATTACHMENT C
Citytaxr

Property Tax Per Capita (FYl
20 Largest Gities

1,000.00

900.00

800.00

700.00

600.00

500.00

400.00

300.00

200.00

DU BU MA FD CF MC SC AM CL DM WA MA DA BE CR CB UR AN WDM

Property Tax Per Capita (FY10)

20 Largest lowa Cities

ÐU
BU
MA
FD
CF
MC
SC
AM
CL
DM
WA
MA
DA
BE
CR
CB
UR
tc
AN

WDM

Dubuque
Burlington
Marshalltown
Fort Dodge
Cedar Falls
Mason City
Sioux City
Ames
Clinton

Marion
Davenport
Bettendorf
Cedar Rapids
Council Bluffs
Urbandale
lowa City
Ankeny
West Des

345.17

391.32
417.23
417.41
431.73
434.66
467.26
503.72
551.15

580.82
628.58
639.98
668.53
707.66
734.46
754.68

26,009
25,136
36,145
29,172
85,013
50,731
27,772

26,294
98,359
31,275

120,758
58,268
29,072

46,403

For over two decades Cedar Falls' local
government has operated at one of the lowest per

capita property tax rates among the 20 largest

cities in lowa.

At a cost of $417.23 per person, the City is sub-
stantially below the average rate of $543.77. This
rate can be attributed to the City's concerted etforts

streamline operations over the past 20 years.

lf the City of Cedar Falls operated at the state
property tax per capita, an additional 4.5

million dollars would be devoted to operations.
This would be an increase of 30% of taxes levied

in FY10.

lncluded in Cedar Falls'population are university

students who live in campus housing and do not
pay property taxes. This results in an even greater

property tax burden on the citizens.
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ATTACHMENT D

Full-Time Employees Per 1,000 Residents
Comparison of 15 Largest Cities

13

11

I

7

5
AM CR IC DM DU MC DA SC CB WA WDM BE CL CF UR

City
FYO9

Employees
2000

Population
Employees
Per 1,000

Ames*
Cedar Rapids*
lowa City
Des Moines
Dubuque
Mason City
Davenpoft
Sioux City
Council Bluffs
Waterloo
W. Des Moines
Bettendorf
Clinton
Cedar Falls
Urbandale

563.0
1261.0
638.0

1929.0
512.00
251.0

806.00
663.0
445.O

522.0
343.0
230.0
192.0
216.0
158.0

50,731
120,758
62,220

198,682
57,686
29,040
98,359
85,013
58,268
68,747
46,403
31,275
27,772
36,145
29,072

11.10
10.44
10.28
9.71

B.88
8.64
8.19
7.80
7.63
7.59
7.39
7.35
6.91
5.98
5.43

Average: 8.25

Cedar Falls city government
continued to have one of the
lowest number of employees
per 1,000 capita comparing
the top 15 largest cities.

Cedar Falls has 2.3
employees per 1,000 capita
less than the state average,
which is equivalent to 83
fewer full-time employees.

Employment reductions have
been implemented over the
last 10 years, which has
streamlined Cedar Falls'
employment.

* Cities using a Full-Time equivalent in computing their employee level.
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Average Residential Sales Price (Annua
Cedar Falls, lowa
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Resalel l
ATTACHMENT E

The average sale price of residential properties in

Cedar Falls has grown by 66% between 1999 - 2009
from $125,052 to $207,754.
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1999
2000
2001
2002
2003
2004
2005
2006
2007
2008
2009

125,052
136,175
138,226
153,312
163,637
168,589
181,310
190,828
195,080
192,154
207,754



Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence

in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

City of Ce dar Falls

Iowa
For its Comprehensive Annual

Financial Report

for the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2009

A Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial

Reporting is presented by the Government Finance Off¡cers

Association of the United States and Canada to
government units and public employee retirement

systems whose comprehensive annual financial
reports (CAFRs) achieve the highest

standards in government accounting
and furancial reporting.

fu31#-
Executive Director

r,n z-efn¿,l
President

-12-



I

(¡)
¡

Legal Services
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Public Records
& Parking
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Citizens of
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Community
Services

Engineering
& Storm Water

city division org.doc

lnspection
Services
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Visitor & Tourism
Services

Suppression
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Senior Services

Prevention

Public
Works
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Maintenance

Water
Reclamation

January 14,20'10
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Board
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Civil Service
Commission

Library Board
of Trustees

Board of
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City boards & commissions.doc

Comm Ctr & Senior
Services Board

Park & Recreation
Com m ission

Board of
Appeals

Cable TV
Commission

Housing
Commission

Planning & Zoning
Commission

Board of Electrical
Examiners

Cedar Falls Health
Trust Board

Human Rights
Commission

Utilities Board
of Trustees

F¡nance Division
November 3, 2009
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CPAs &. BUSINESS ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and

Members of the CiÇ Council
City of Cedar Falls, lowa

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each majorfund, and the aggregate remaining

fund information of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which
collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the management of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa. Our responsibiliÇ is to

express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued

by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit
to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overallfinancial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

ln our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely
presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of
Cedar Falls, lowa, as of June 30, 2010, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows,
where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America.

ln accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report, under separate cover,
dated November 8, 2010, on our consideration of thè City's internal control overfinancial reporting and on our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial

reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control

over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

www.eideboilly.com
3999 Pennsylvonio Ave., Sre. 100 | Dubuque,lA52002-2273 | T5ó3.55ó.1790 | F 5ó3.557.7842 | EOE
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The Management's Discussion and Analysis and the other required supplementary information listed in the

table of contents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information

required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain

limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of

measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the

information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively

comprise the basic financial statements of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa. The introductory section, combining

nonmajor fund financial statements, capital assets schedules, and statistical section are presented for

purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The combining

nonmajor fund financial statements and capital assets schedules have been subjected to the auditing

procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all

material respects in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and statistical

sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial

statements, and accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

ör-4t¿l
Dubuque, lowa
November 8, 2010
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City of Cedar Falls' financial performance provides an overview of the City's
financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010. Please read it in conjunction with the transmittal letter
found on pages 1-11oÍ this report.

2O1O FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

year 2010. Property taxes increased $1,071,692 for all activities.

Economic Development expenses increased by $1,341,490.

the net assets of the governmental activities increased by $12,839,459 and the net assets of the business-type
activities increased by $1,784,091.

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The annual report consists of a series of financial statements and other information as follows:

. Management's Discussion and Analysis introduces the basic financial statements and provides an analytical
overview of the City's financial activities.

. Government-wide Financial Statements consist of a Statement of Net Assets and a Statement of Activities.
These provide information about the activitíes of the City as a whole and present an overall view of the City's
finances.

o The Fund Financial Statements tell how governmental activities were financed in the short term as well as
what remains for future spending. Fund financial statements report the City's operations in more detail than
the government-wide statements by providing information about the City's most significant funds.

. Notes to Financial Statements provide additional information essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the basic financial statements.

. Required Supplementary lnformation further explains and supports the financial statements with a comparison
of the City's budget for the year.

. Other Supplementary lnformation provides detailed information about the nonmajor Special Revenue and

Capital Projects Funds and the lnternal Service Funds.

REPORT¡NG THE CITY'S FINANCIAL ACTIVITIES

Government-wide Financial Statements

One of the most important questions asked about the City's finances is, "ls the City of Cedar Falls in a better financial
position at the end of the fiscal year, compared to last year?" The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of
Activities report information about the City as a whole and about its activities in a way that helps answer this question.

These statements include all assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current yea/s revenues and expenses are taken into

account regardless of when cash is received or paid.

-18-



The Statement of Net Assets presents all of the City's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two
reported as "net assets". Over time, increases or decreases in the City's net assets are one indicator of whether its

financial health is improving or deteriorating. A person will need to consider other non-financial factors, however, such
as changes in the City's property tax base and the condition of the City's infrastructure, to assess the overall health of
the City.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City's net assets changed during the most recent
fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related
cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will not result in cash
flows untilfuture fiscal periods.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities report two kinds of activities:

. Governmental activities - Most of the City's basic services are reported here, including the general

administration, streets, fire, police, parks, recreation, library, and housing and block grant assistance. Property

taxes, local option sales taxes, road use taxes, and federal and state grants finance most of these activities.

. Business-type activities - The City of Cedar Falls charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the
cost of certain services it provides. The City's sewer, refuse, and storm water are reported in this section.

The Government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 30 - 33 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The Fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant funds, not the City as a whole.
Some funds are required to be established by State law or by bond requirements. The City has two kinds of funds:

. Governmental Funds - Most of the City's basic services are reported in governmental funds, which focus on

how money flows into and out of these funds and the balances left at year-end that are available for spending.
These funds are reported using an accounting method called the "modified accrual basis" of accounting, which
measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund
statements provide a detailed short-term view of the City's general government operations and the basic
services it provides. Governmental fund information helps you determine whether there are more or fewer
financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance City programs.

The required financial statements for governmental funds include a balance sheet and a statement of
revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances. We describe the relationship between governmental

activities (reported in the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities) and governmental funds in

a reconciliation at the bottom of the fund financial statements.

The City maintains 24 individual governmental funds. lnformation is presented separately in the governmental

fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund
balance for the General Fund, Hospital Fund, TIF Fund, Street Repair Fund, Street Construction Fund, Debt

Service Fund, FEMA Fund, and Bond Fund, all of which are considered to be major funds. Data from the
other seventeen governmental funds are combined into a single, aggregated presentation. lndividual fund
data for each of these non-major governmental funds is provided in the form of combining statements located
in the supplementary information section of this report.

The basic Governmental Fund Financial Statements can be found on pages 34 - 38 of this report.
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Proprietary Funds - When the City charges customers for the service it provides, these services are generally

reported in proprietary funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are

used to report the same functions presented as business-type activities in the government-wide financial

statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its sewer, refuse and storm water activities.

lnternal Service Funds are used to accumulate and allocate costs internally. The City uses internal service

funds for its information systems, vehicle maintenance, and various risk management activities. Because

these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, they have been

included within governmentalactivities in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary funds provide the same information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more

detail. The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the Sewer Fund, Refuse

Fund, and Storm Water Fund, all of which are considered major funds. lnternal Service Funds are combined

into a single, aggregated presentation in the proprietary fund financial statements. lndividual fund data for
internal service funds is provided in the form of combining statements located in the supplementary

information section of this report.

The basic Proprietary Fund Financial Statements can be found on pages 39 - 44 of this report.
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GOVERNMENT.WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of financial position. The analysis that follows

focuses on the change in the net assets for governmental and business-type activities.

Governmental activities Busi nes s-type activities ïotal

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 20æ

$ 108,024,037

1ß,il1,131

$ 101,630,089

138,336,263

$ 8,052,661

48,652,5U

$ 9,020,091

47,212,711

$ 116,076,698 $ 110,650,180

195,193,635 185,U8,974

Current and

other assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Long-term debt

Other liiabilities

Total liabilities

254,565,168

18,035,731

30,203,439

239,966,352

17,502,402

28,977,411

56,705,1 65

4,708,019

826,995

56,232,802

6,016,333

830,409

31 1 ,270,333 296,199,154

22,743,750 $ 23,518,735

31,030,434 29,æ7,820

Æ,239,170 $ 46,479,813 $ 5,535,014 g 6,846,7425 53,774,184 $ 53,326,555

Net assets:

lnvested in capital

assets, net of

related debt $

Restricted

Unrestricted

131,237,132 $

2,U1,338

52,747,528

123,367,386 $

21,421,340

48.697,813

46,273,076 $

9,500

4,887,575

44,414,522 $

449,500

4,522,038

177,510,208

22,350,838

57.635,103

$ 167,781,908

21,870,840

53,219,851

Totalnet assets $ 206,325,998 $ 193,486,539 $ 51,170,151 $ 49,386,060 ç 257,496,149 S 242,872,599

Net assets of governmental activities increased from FY09 by approximately $12.8 million, or 6.63%. This increase
was due primarily to the continued strength of the property tax base and the continued increase in building permits

received by the City. Net assets of business-type activities increased from FY09 by approximately $1.8 million, or
3.61Yo. This increase was due to transfers from the FEMA fund to replace assets the Refuse Fund lost in the 2008

flood. ln addition, this was the fourth year that storm water fees were collected. The largest portion of the Gity's net

assets is the invested in capital assets (e.9., land, infrastructure, buildings, and equipment), less the related debt. The

debt related to the investment in capital assets is liquidated with sources other than capital assets. Restricted net

assets represent resources that are subject to external restrictions, bond covenants, constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation on how they can be used. Unrestricted net assets, the part of net assets that can be used to
finance day-to-day operations are approximately $58 million at the end of the year.
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For the year ended June 30, 2010, net assets changed as follows:

Govemmental Activities Bu siness-type Activi ties ToÞl

2010 æ09 2009 2010 20092010

4,595,625 $

1,606,798

8,{28,178

22,æ6,237

4,363,353

659,147

1,640,456

4,258,253

1,127,%4

1,524,990

4,173,738 $

2,153,521

7,183,972

n,994,332

4,ffi7,172

751,124

2,421,181

3,693,255

965,194

1,500,000

128,795

1,748

76,663

983,243

1,961

224,133

12,585A78 $

1,606,798

9,056,973

22,067,985

4,363,353

659,147

1,717,119

4,2æ,253

1,127pæ

1,524,9W

12,102,1æ

2,153,921

8,167 215

20,996290

4,557,172

751,124

2,645,314

3,6S3,255

965,194

1,500,000

7,989,853 $ 7,W8,371 $

Revenues

Program Revenues

Charges for

services

Operating grants

and contributions

CapiÞl granb and

contributions

General Revenues

Property taxes

Local Option Sales Tax

HoteUMotel Tax & Other

Use of money and

property

lnþrgovemmenbl

Miscellaneous

Utility contribution

Tohl revenues

Expenses

Public safety

Public works

Healh and social

services

Culture and

recreation

Community and

economic

developnent

General govemment

Debt service

Seuer

Refuse

Storm Water

ToÞl expenses

lncrease in net asseb

before transfers

Transfers

lncrease in net asseb

Net assets, beginning

Net assets, endirg

50.71.001 $ 48,393,889 $ 8,197,059 $ 9,137,708 $ 58,968,060 $ 57,531,597

7,725,740

10,699,831

164,836

6,864,804

7,01 9,195

4,797,762

741,933

7,192,U6

13,938,703

3'10,365

6,836,437

5,677,705

4,619,2.1

754,989

7,725,740

10,699,831

164,836

6,864,804

7,019,195

4,797]62

741,933

3,187,378

2,410,813

732,218

7,192,86

13,9387ß

310,365

6,836337

5,6777É

4,619221

754,9æ

3,178,39

2,355,999

620,460

3,187,378

2,410,813

732,218

3,178,39

2,355,999

620,4æ

38,014,101 $ æ,330,266 $ 6,330,409 $ 6,154,813 $ 44,34,510 $ 45,485,079

12.756.900 $ 9,063,æ3 $ 1,866,650 $

82,559 (413,81e) (82,5se)

2,982,895

413,819

14,623,550 $ '12,046,518

12,839,459 $

193,486,539

8,649,804 $

184,836,735

1,784,æ1

49,386,060

3,396,714 $

45,989,346

14,623,550 $ 12,046518

242,872,5W æ0,826,081

51,170,151 $2m,325,998 $ 1S,486,539 $
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Property tax revenue increased by approximately $1.1 million from FY09 due to increased TIF revenue. FEMA grants

for property buyouts related to the 2008 Flood, caused capital grants and contributions to increase by $890 thousand
for FY10.

INDIVIDUAL MAJOR FUND ANALYSIS

Governmental Fund Highlights

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the City's governmental funds reported combined ending fund balances of
$59,879,746. $6,132,738 is reserved foremployee retirementsystems, inventory, and debtservice. This leaves an

unreserved balance of $53, 747, 008.

This governmental fund balance increased by $2,239,300, or 3.88%. This increase was due in part to the increase in
the Hospital Fund. Due to low rates of return on the Hospital's investments, grant expenditures to outside agencies
were not awarded in FY10.

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Cedar Falls. At the end of the current fiscal, unreserved
fund balance of the General Fund was $5,150,947, while the total fund balance totaled $5,329,094. As a measure of
the General Funds liquidity, it may be useful to compare both unreserved fund balances and total fund balances to
total fund expenditures. Unreserved fund balance represents 26.8o/o of the total General Fund expenditures, while the
total fund balance represents 27.7% of that same amount.

The following fund balances in the other major funds, which comprise the Total Governmental Funds are listed below:

FYlO
Amount

FYO9

Amount
lncrease

(Decrease)

Hospital Fund

TIF Fund

Street Repair Fund

Street Construction Fund

Debt Service Fund

FEMA Fund

Bond Fund

Other Governmental Funds

g 14,303,622

97,128

12,803,158

3,749,867

236,610

(1,740,555)

2,805,648

22,295,174

$ 13,565,927

56,807

12,465,090

3,171,402

256,910

(186,530)

2,546,898

20,344,738

$ 737,695

40,321

338,068

578,465

(20,300)

(1,554,025)

258,750

1,950,436

The largest increase in fund balance for the major funds occurred in the Other Governmental Funds. This was due to
TIF repayments to the Economic Development Fund in FY10.

The FEMA Fund had the largest decrease in fund balance due to the continued expenditures related to the 2008 Flood

for property buyouts and demolitions. The City continues to cashflow these expenditures until FEMA reimbursements
are received.
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The following schedule presents a summary of the governmental fund revenues for the fiscal year ended June 30,

2010 and June 30, 2009.

Revenues

Property taxes and

assessments

Other city taxes

Licenses and permits

Use of money and proper$

lntergovernmental

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous

Utility contribution in lieu of

taxes

FYlO
Amount

Percent

of Total

FYO9

Amount

lncrease
(Decrease)

from FY09

Percent of
lncrease

(Decrease)

40.39 olo

(11.62)

12.76

(2e.41)

81.44

5.50

(2.37)

2.37

0.94

22,066,237

5,029,677

1,106,716

1,640,456

12,351,723

3,115,157

373,752

1,057,446

1,524,990

45.72 %

10.42

2.29

3.40

25.59

6.45

0.77

2.20

3.16

20,994,332

5,338,098

767,938

2,421,181

10,189,992

2,969,223

436,578

994,537

1,500,000

1,071,905

(308,421)

338,778

(780,725)

2,161,731

145,934

(62,826)

62,909

24,990

The most significant increase in revenues was in intergovernmental. The increase was due to the receipt of FEMA

disaster assistance payments. The second most significant increase was in property taxes and assessments. The

increase was due to increased TIF revenues from the City's two TIF districts.

The most significant decrease in revenues was in use of money and property. This was caused by falling interest

rates on the City's investments.

Governmental Revenues
Miscellaneous

2.20o/o

Fines & Forfeitures

FYl O

0.77%

Charges for Services
6.45o/o Property Taxes

45.72o/o

I nte rgovern mental
25.59o/o

Use of Money &
Property
3.40o/o

$ 48,266,154

Licenses & Perm
2.29%

100.00 % $ 45,611,879 ç 2,654,275 100.00 %

Utility Contributions
3.160Â

Other City Taxes
10.42o/o
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The following schedule presents a summary of governmental expenditures for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2009

and June 30, 2008.

Public Safety

Public Works

Health & Social Services

Culture & Recreation

Cummunity and Economic

Development

General Government

Debt Service

Capital Projects

Debt Service
7.34o/o

$ 7,922,903

8,816,278

87,304

6,076,258

2,291,861

4,613,684

3,658,057

16,357,586

$ 7,551,507

7,783,897

163,528

6,065,698

2,253,049
4,381,790

3,649,841

13,486,565

$ 371,396

1,032,381

(76,224)

10,560

38,812

231,894

8,216
2,871,021

Expenditures

FYlO

Amount

Percent

of

Total

15.90 %

17.69

0.18

12.20

4.60

9.26

7.U
32.83

FYO9

Amount

lncrease

(Decrease)

from FY09

Percent of

lnc rease

(Decrease)

8.28 o/o

23.00

(1.70)

0.24

0.86

5.17

0.18

63.97

$ 49,823,931 100.00 % $ 45,335,875 $ 4,488,056 100.00 %

The most significant increase in expenditures occurred in the capital projects function. This was due to several

projects occurring during FY10, including disaster recovery expenditures.

The only decrease in expenditures occurred in the Health & Social Services. This was due to the Cedar Falls Health

Trust Fund Board's recommendation to not fund projects in FY10.

Public Safety
15.90%

PublicWoks
17.690/o

General Govemment
9.Âo/o

Conmunity and
Econqric

Dwelopnænt
4.6}0/o

Healh & Social

Services

Culture and

Recreation
12.20o/o

Crovernnæ ntal Expend itu rcs
FYlO

Capital Projects
32.83%
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Proprietary Funds

City of Cedar Falls proprietary funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial

statements, but in more detail.

Unrestricted net assets of the Sewer, Refuse and Storm Water funds at the end of the year amounted to $4,887,575.

There are unrestricted assets in the Governmental Activities lnternal Service fund of $13,342,060.

These funds were established for the City operations that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private

business enterprises. The cost of providing the services to the general public is recovered, in whole or in part, through

user charges.

The City's enterprise operations are comprised of three separate and distinct activities: Sewer, Refuse and Storm

Water. Results of operations for these funds for the years ended June 30, 2010 and June 30, 2009 are as follows:

Sewer Refuse Storm Water

2010 2009 2010 2009 2010 2009

Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses

Non-Operating Rev (Exp)

Capital Contributions

Operating Transfers, net

Net lncome

g 4,015,527

2,985,5n
(149,470)

77,560

(73,160)

884,880

$ 3,999,239

2,%6,401

(5e,266)

352,212

(202,460)

1,143,324

$ 3,186,384 $ 3,148,295

2,393,296 2,3ffi,057

(4,495) 27,551

(437,%1)

381,848

s 787,942 $ 780,837

732,218 620,460

13,058 25,914

51,235 631,031

(258,107) 1,054,220

(138,090) 1,871,542

248,708
1,037,301

Proprietary Fund Operating Revenues & Expenses
FYlO

5,000,000

4,000,000

3,ooo,ooo

2,ooo,oo0

1,000,000

Sewer Refuse Storm Water

KOperating Revenue tr Operating Expenses

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Overthe course of the year, the City Council revised the budget one time. This amendmentwas done in April 2010.

The amendment was needed due to the City's participation in the Jumpstart, Buyout, Demolition, and Public

Assistance Federal & State Programs. At the end of the year, the City did not exceed the amended budgeted

amounts in any of its functlons.
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CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

GapitalAssets
At the end of June 30, 2010, the City had approximately $195 million invested in capital assets including police and fire

equipment, public buildings, park facilities, roads, bike trails, bridges, water treatment facilities, sanitary sewer lines,

and storm water improvements. (See Table following.) This represents a net increase of approximately $9.6 million or

5.2o/o over last year.

City of Gedar Falls Capital Assets
(net of depreciation)

Governmental activities Business-tvoe activities Total

2010 2009 2010 20092010 2009

Land

Buildings

lmprovements
other than

buildings

Machinery and

equipment

lnf rastructure

Construction

in progress

Total

$ 20,363,319

19,572,863

8,935,794

6,730,054

80,795,030

10,144,071

$ 15,290,332

20,128,589

9,138,288

7,261,428

76,1U,414

10.383,212

$ 1,612,581 $
7,828,512

1,612,581

6,903,335
$ 21,975,900 $ 16,902,913

27,401,375 27 ,031,924

5,662,602 5,402,867

29,900,203 29,381,517

3,648,6m 3,912,411

8,935,794

12,392,656

110,695,233

13,792,677

9,138,288

12,664,295

105,515,931

14,295.623

$ 146,541,131 $ 138,336,263 $ 48,652,504 $ 47,212,711 $ 195,193,635

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

o College Hill Reconstruction.

¡ East Viking Road Construction.

. Purchase of land related to Flood Buyout Program.

. Tourist Park Lift Station.

. University Dry Run Detention Basin.

More detailed information about the City's capital assets is presented in Note 3 to the financial

statements.

Capital Assets Net of Depreciation
Land

11.ßo/o

Buildings
14.Uo/o

lmpovenents
4.58o/o

Madrinery & Equipment
6.3S/o

lnfrastructure
56.70o/o

$ 185,548,974
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Debt

At year-end, the City had $22,685,000 in outstanding bonds compared to $23,680,000 last year. That is a decrease of

$995,000 or 4.2o/o.

City of Cedar Falls Outstanding Debt
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds

Govemmentd activitbs B us iness-type activities Totd

2010 2009 2010 æ09 2010 2009

General obligatior

bonds

Ta< increment

financing

Ca¡ital loan notes

Revenue bonds

Tdal

$ 5,360,m0 $

2,865,m0

9,725,m0

9,435,000

3,760,000

4,435,000

$ 4,735,000 $ 5,285,000

765,0;

$ 10,æ5,000

2,865,000

9,25,000

$ 14,720,000

3,760,000

4,435 000

765,000

$ 17,950,m0 $ 17,630,000 $ 4,735,000 $ 6,050,000 $ 22,685,000 $ 23,68q000

The City of Cedar Falls was upgraded to a Aal rating from Moody's lnvestor Services for all general obligation

issuances. This was a result of Moody's recalibrating their U.S. municipal rating scale.

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a government entity may issue to 5% of its total assessed

valuation. As of June 30, 2010, the City's legal debt margin was $93,841,750.

More detailed information about the City's long-term debt is presented in Note 3 to the financial statements.

City of Cedar Falls Outstanding Debt
FYlO

Capital Loan Notes
43%

GO Bonds
44o/o
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ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGETS AND RATES

During the state legislative session in 2004, the legislature permanently eliminated certain state funding to local

governments starting with FY2005 and will continue in all future years. This along with the continuation of the state

rollback on residential properties greatly affects the City's general operating fund.

Even with the State reductions, the City Council did establish a balanced budget in the General Fund for FY11. The

tax levy rate per $1,000 of taxable valuation for FY10 is provided below:

General levy $ 8.10

Trust and Agency levy 3.06

Debt Service levy 1 .18

Transit levy .27

Library levy .27

Liability lnsurance levy .09

Municipal Band levy .02

Total levy $ 12.99

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers and creditors with a general overview of

the City's finances and to show the City's accountability for the money it receives. The City's discretely presented

component units, Cedar Falls Utilities, have separately issued financial statements. lf you have questions about this

report or need additional information, contact the Department of Administrative Services, 220 Clay Street, Cedar Falls,

lowa 50613.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Statement of Net Assets
June 30, 2010

Primary Govemment
Governmental Business-type

Activities Activities Total

ASSETS
Cash
Certificates of deposit
Receivables, net of allowance for uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes
Other city taxes
Accrued interest
Special assessments
Notes from associated company
Customers
Human & Leisure services contributions
Other

Due from component unit
Due from other gover¡ments
lnventories
Prepaids and other assets
Restricted assets:

Cash
Certificates of deposit
US government and agency securities

Capital assets:
Land
Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Due to primary government
Note payable to associated company
Unearned revenue
Long-term liabilities:

Portion due or payable within one year:
Bonds payable
Compensated absences

Portion due or payable after one year:
Bonds payable
Compensated absences
Net OPEB liability
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted:

Streets
Debt service
Employee retirement system
TIF
Post closure costs

Unrestricted
Total net assets

See notes to financial statements

20,363,319 1,612,581 21,975,900
12,397,788 12,397,788
26,971,847 12,714,794 39,686,641
15,285,384 7,407,342 22,692,726

139,355,533 42,134,210 181,489,743
10,144,071 3,648,606 13,792,677

(77 ,976,811\ (18,865,029) (96,841 ,840)
$ 254,565,168 $ 56,705,165 $ 311,270,333

$ 72,432,574_

23,874,855
749,149
106,733

8,720_

3,140,360
923,621
774,990

5,583,407
429,628_

$ 6,907,269

9,50;

1,003,€;

132,445

$ 306,420
106,995_

575,000
112,966

4,133,019
300,614

$ 5,535,014

s 46,273,076

9,50;
4,887,575

$ 51,170,151

$ 79,339,843

23,874,855
749,149
116,241

8,720_

3,140,360
1,927,060

774,990
5,583,407

562,073

$ 2,418,894
1,439,755

23,615,413

3,235,000
690,101

14,800,731
1,790,107

249J69
$ 48,239,170

$ 131,237j32

16,415,874
236,610

5,59'1,726
97,128

$ 2,725,314
1,546,750

23,615,413

3,810,000
803,067

18,933,750
2,090,721

249j69
$ 53,774,184

$ 177,510,208

16,415,874
236,610

5,591,726
97,128

9,500
57,635,103

g 257,496,149
52,747,528

_$_206,eÞpgg_
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Component Units
Electric
Ut¡litv

$ 13,797,916
6,285,058

Gas Water
Utilitv Utilitv

$ 8,594,324 S 2,971,828_

Communications
Util¡tv

$ 4,880,448
539,000

fi1,64;

1,543,090
4,372,673

1,618,688

3,347,2g;
7,279,313

573,785

975,083
6,570,913
1,929,408

1,071,983
4,683

21,918,563
19,502,338

131 ,81 1,603
4,129,572

(7O,O82,314)

$ 156,821,297

(8,184,326) (7,570,634)

$ 23,827,603 $ 22,236,340

,i
2,555,512

47,%;

309,525
120,519
33,052

310,463_

41,350

1,942,909
677,854

17,146,851
231,332

'n1

431,618

7,g4¡

124,826
96,589
18,244

123,807_

63,466

799,063
418,547

24,179,598
571,254

f ,76;_

1,309,067

38g,47;

168,753
546,608
153,880

1,278,377
364,000

329,51;
18,490,268

473,067
(9,622.347\

$ 19,311,878

1j28,454
419,793

1,543,090

750,000

5,185,679
134,799
42.267

2,946,371
3,282,984
1,500,000

1,595,000

45,900,788
725,956
360,958

$ 56,312,057

1,962,302
545,124_

207,522
119,032

186,644 82,953
109,320 74,218

$ 2,803,390 g 483,725 $ 9,204,082

62,794,814

6,716,184

$ 1 1,855,970 $ 18,461 ,295 3,313,508

474,765

30,998,242 9,168,243
T--lõõ-50-0240- W- WzgL -$--1qJ-%299-
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Functions/Programs

Primary government:

Governmental activities:

Public safety

Public works

Health and social services

Culture and recreation

Community and economic development

General government

lnterest on long{erm debt and related fees

Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:

Sewer

Refuse

Storm Water

Total business-type activities

Total primary government

Component units

Electric Utility

Gas Utility

Water Utili$

Communications Utility

Total component units

Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Expenses

g 7,725,740

10,699,831

164,836

6,864,804

7,019,195

4,797,762

741,933

$ 38,014,101

$ 3,187,378

2,410,813

732,218

$ 6,330,409

s__3!þ3Ã9_

$ 37,256,568

13,734,160

2,834,898

9,114,542

$ 62,940,168

Program Revenues

@
Charges for Grants and Grants and

Services Contributions Contributions

s97,348

240,997

2,170,036

1,587,24;

$ 4,015,527 $

3,186,384

787,942

$ 7,989,853

_$____1aþ9ÞÉzg_

$ 40,674,951

15,048,764

3,135,143

11,616,593

$ r 35,71 1

1,213,612

257,475

$-
$ 1,606,798

8,058,737

869,441

-- $ 77,560

51,235

$ 128,795

_$___9p5!pz3_

$ 1,082,097

67,864

81 0,1 63

33,296

$ 4,595,625 $ 1,606,798 $ 8,928,178

$ 70,475,4sL $ - $ 1,993,420

General revenues:

Property taxes and assessments

Local option sales tax

Hotel/motel taxes

Other cig taxes

Use of money and property

lntergovernmental, not restricted to specific programs

Miscellaneous

Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net assets

Net assets - beginning

Net assets - ending

See notes to financial statements
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Primarv Govemmenl
Revenue and in NetAssets

Units
Gas Water Communications

Utilitv Ut¡liW Utilitv Utilitv
Governmental

Activities
Business-type

Activities

(6,ee2,681) $

(2,400,097)

(164,836)

(3,481,156)

(6,149,754)

(2,953,043)

$ 905,709 $

775,571

$ -$ -$

- $ (6,ee2,681) $

- (2,400,097)

(164,836)

(3,481,156)

(6,149,754)

- (2,s53,043)

-$ -$

-$

M,72; 22,40;

(741,933) _ (741,933)

$(22,883,500) $ - $ (22,883,500) $ -$ -$ - $ -

905,709

775,571

-$

_ 
$ 4,500,480_ $ -$ - $

1,382,468

-- 1 ,1 10,408

--$

- 106,959 106,959

$ - $ 1,788,239 $ 1,788,239 $ - $ - $ - $ -

-$--(??É93,19E -$----1199¿39- $--121P99¿91 -$----------:: $---------------: -L- -$--------------

2,535,347

-$--------- -L- -$------:: -S--lÉ9Ø99- -$--19q499- -q--ÉqÉqg- -$---?.q99É42-

$ 22,066237

4,363,353

542,466
'116,681

1,640,456

4,258,253

1,127,964

1,524,990

1,748 $ 22,067,985 $

4,363,353

542,466

116,681

1,717 ,119

4,258,253

1,127,964

1,524,990

-$

380,77;

-$

n,06;76,663

82,5s9 (82,559)

$35,722,959$(4,148)$35,718,811$380,776$23,062$14,729$22'402
$ 12,839,459 $ 1,784,091 $ 14,623,s50 $ 4,881,256 $ 1,405'530 $ 1,125'137 $ 2'557'749

193,486,539 49,386,060 242,872,599 95,627,984 19,618,683 20,627,478 7,550,047

$ 206,325,ee8 $ 51,170,151 $ 2s7,1e6,14e $-l-99Éq9ø9- S--4øø3- 3-21tf52ru- -$jAJ-qZJgg-:
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City of Gedar Falls, lowa

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010

SpecialRevenue

General
Fund

Hospital
Fund

TIF
Fund

Street
Repair
Fund

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes
Other city taxes
Accrued interest
Special assessments
Human & Leisure services contributions
Other

Due from component unit
Due from other funds
Due from other governments
lnventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
L¡ABIL¡TIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue
Due to other funds

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:

Employee retirement system
lnventories
Debt service

Unreserved:
Undesignated, reported in:

Generalfund
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

$ 5,145,931

13,876,807
72,741
20,968

3,140,360
46,526

774,990

17,157
178,147

$ 14,302,318

130;

430,824

7,787,387

$ 12,925,518

603,667
19,909

_þ__23zry,6n_

$ 247,141
740,820

16,956,572 430,824 7,690,259

_s__1!lu!4q_ _fi__J_Jg7 W._ $ 13.549.094

745,936_

$ 17,944,533

$--
178,147__

5,150,947
14,303,622

430,824 $ 7,690,259 $ 745,936

-: 
$

97J28 12,803,15;

$ 5,329,094 $ 14,303,622 $ 97,128 $ 12,803,158

s 23,273,627 g 14,734,446 $ 7,787,387 $ 13,549,091=.

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures and, therefore, are deferred in the funds.
lnternal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of fleet management, management information

systems and risk management activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the internal service funds
are included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets.

Accrued interest payable is not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, is not
reported in the funds.

Accrued compensated absences and other postemployment benefits, are not due and payable in the current period and,

therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Bonds payable are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Net assets of govemmental activities

See notes to financial statements
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Special Revenue
Street

Construction
Fund

$ 3,539,280

200j26
98,153

Capital Proiects
Debt

Service
Fund

FEMA
Fund

Bond
Fund

Other
Governmental

Funds

Total
Governmental

Funds

218,551

1,710,730

$ 3,460,794 $ 19,198,181 $

499,931
72,741
41,016

8,720

1 18,665

3,055,56;
41,971
28J02

58,790,573

23,874,855
749,149

84,731
8,720

3,140,360
596,015
774,990

3,055,563
5,583,407

304,402

387

4,456,689

1,147

867,464

$ 4,329,405 $ 23,064,890 _$____96,992Jqq_

18,392
69,300_

$ 376,060

1,692,671 2,766,008
3,055,563

729,060 $

794,697

144,507 $
30,576

594,633_

2,261,096
840,696

30,925,664
3,055,563

$ 87,692 $ 1,692,671 $ 6,197,631 $ 1,523,757 $ 769,716 $ 37,083,019

$
98,1 53_

3,651,714

$

236,610

$ 5,591,726

--28'102-

5,473,645
11,201,701

5,591,726
304,402
236,610

5,150,947
36,329,267
12,266,794

:-$

(1,740,555) 2,805,648

$ 3,749,867 $ 236,610 $ (1,740,555) $ 2,805,648 g 22,295,174 $ 59'879'746

__$__9É92éq9_ _$__l,e2qzgl _$_llgzJzg_ -$--tÉ29,49!- -$-29p91É99-

143,409,417
7,310,252

16,473,774

(51,168)

(2,660,292)
(18,035,731)

-35-
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 201 0

SpecialRevenue

General
Fund

Hospital
Fund

TIF
Fund

Street
Repair
Fund

Revenues:

Property taxes and assessments

Other city taxes
Licenses and permits

Use of money and propertY

lntergovernmental

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous

Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:
Public safety

Public works
Health and social services

Culture and recreation

Community and economic development

General government

Debt service

Capitalprojects

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Proceeds from long-term debt

Payments on refunding bonds

Proceeds from refunding bonds

Premium on long-term debt

Discount on long-term debt

Transfers in
Transfers out

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances, beginning

lncrease (decrease) in reserve for inventories

Fund balances, ending

See notes to financial statements

$ 19,861,800 $ 771 ,308 6,754,287

$ 13,261,523 $

382,669

1,106,716

100,690

701,487

2,412,997

167,226

203,502

1,524,990

--$

770,716

5s;-

6,754,287
4,363,35;

141,461

19,500_

173,411

4,697,725

$ 7,159,271 $

1,322,849
14,750

5,595,1 18

826,596
4,320,277

$

72,554

4,935,506

$ 19,238,861 $ 72,554

$ 622,939 $ 698,754

$ 4,935,506

s 6.754.287 $ Q37,781)

n-

6fx,42;
(1,44e,818)

38,941
(6,713,e66)

575,849

Total other financing sources (uses) $ (758,393) $ 38'941 (6,713,966) $ 575,849

$ (135,454) $ 737,6e5

5,419,204 13,565,927

45.344

-$---lÉ?9p91- -S--J! 3æ,6n-

40,321 $

56,807

338,068

12,465,090

-36-
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SpecialRevenue
Street

Construction
Fund

CapitalProjects

FEMA
Fund

Other Total

Governmental Governmental
Funds Funds

Debt
Service

Fund

Bond

Fund

--$

3,155,63;

18.210

1,6U,792
u'ur1_

$

2,74;
6,529,287__

2,714

:: 
$

6,992

183,072__

140,934

415,635 $
274,822

617,853

1,762,743

702,160
206,526

518,083

22,066,237

5,029,677

1,106,716

1,640,456

12,351,723

3,115,157

373,752

1,057,M6
1,524,990

s 3,173,844 $ 1,643,625

$

2,358,393

$

3,615,92;

:: 
$

42,132
5,698,233

763,632 $
199,530

481j40
1,465,265

293,407

3,491,084

7,922,903
8,816,278

87,304

6,076,258
2,291,861

4,613,684

3,658,057

16,357,586

-: 
$

7,168,269

$ 2,358,393 $ 3,615,925

$ 815,451 $ (1,972,300)

$ 7,168,269 $ 5,740,365 $ 6,694,058 $ 49,823'931

$ (633,5241 $ (5,409,3671 $ (2,196,236) $ (1,557,777\

.-$

(272,20;;

$ (272,208) $ 1,952,000

s 543,243 $ (20,300)

$ (920,s01) $ 5,668,117 $ 4,140,430

$ (1,554,025) $ 258,750 $ 1,944,194

(186,530) 2,546,898_ ",\:,i17

(5,325,0;;
5,135,000

227,162

1,914,838

--$

(920,50;;

3,440,000_ $

e8,72;;
2,296,084

(3e,243)

5,499,96;
(1,35e,539)

$ 3,440,000
(5,325,000)

5,135,000

227J62
(28,724)

11,017,106
(10,755,275)

$ 3,710,269

$ 2,152,492

57,640,446
86,808

3,171,402
35.222

256,910_

$3,74e,867$236,610$(1,740,555)$2,805,6489.=22,2e5,174$--19'829'i46-:+:
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City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ 2,152,492

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are
different because:

Government funds report capital outlays as expenditures while
governmental activities report depreciation expense to allocate those
expenditures over the life of the assets. Capital outlay expenditures
exceeded depreciation expense in the current year, as follows:

Net acquisition of capital assets
Depreciation expense

Because some revenues will not be collected for several months after the
City's year end, they are not considered available revenues and are
deferred in the governmental funds, as follows:

Other

Proceeds from issuing long-term liabilities provide current financial
resources to governmentalfunds, but issuing debt increases long-term
líabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Repayment of long-term
liabilities is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but the repayment
reduces long-term liabilities in the Statement of Net Assets. Current year
repayments exceeded issues, as follows:

lssued
Discount on general obligation bonds
Premium on general obligation bonds
Repaid
Accrued interest

Some expenses reported in the Statement of Activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as
expenditures in governmental funds, as follows:

Compensated absences
Other postemployment benefits
Change in inventory

lnternal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
fleet management, management information systems and risk
management activities to individual funds. The net revenue of certain
activities of internal service funds is reported with governmental activities.

Change in net assets of governmental activities

See notes to financial statements

14,422,687
(5,818,424\

2,236,701

(8,575,000)
13,832

(227,162)
8,255,000

1,016

(60,394)
(92,777)
86.808

8,604,263

2,236,701

(532,314)

(66,363)

444,680

-38-
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Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa
Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2010

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Sewer Fund Refuse Fund

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:

Accrued interest
Other

lnventories
ïotal current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Land
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure
Construction in progress
Accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Totalassets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Bonds payable - due within one year
Compensated absences - due within one year

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Bonds payable- after one year
Compensated absences - after one year

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for post closure costs
Unrestricted

Total net assets

See notes to financial statements

$ 4,888,504

6,277
614,888

32,643
g 5,542,312

779,878
11,595,276
5,512,387

29,290,624
1,323,768

(13,871,613)
$ 33,630,320
$ 39,172,632

$ 1,038,647

1,679
357,962

99,802

$ 1,498,090

204,845
1 ,1 19,51 I
1,994,955

723,585
(1,194,706)

$ 2,748,197
$ 4,246,287

$ 175,098
59,612

575,000
60,120

$ 869,830

4,133,019
116.781

$ 4,249,800
$ 5,119,630

$ 31 ,250,892

2,802,110
T- 3405-3por

$ 127,800
39,607

45,909
$ 213316

$
172,646

s 172,646
$ 385,962

$ 2,748,197
9,500

1,102,628

_s__1860,æg_
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Storm Water Fund

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Fund

Governmental
Activities -

lnternal
Service FundsTotal

012.259

627,858__

13,843,586
1,601,253

(3,798,710)
ç 12,273,987
$ 13,286,246

$ 8,052,661

1,612,581
12,714,794
7,407,342

42,134,2',10
3,648,606

(18,865,029)
$ 48,652,504
$ 56,705,165

980,1 18

1,552
30,599_

6,907,269

9,508
1,003,439

132,445

$ 13,642,001

22,002
327,606
125,226

$ 14,116,935

90,302
7,238,827__

(4,197,415\
$ 3,131,714
8 17,248,549

$ 3,522
7,776

6,937
$ 18235

11.187

$ 11,187
$ 29,422

$ 12,273,987

982,837
$ 13256F24

$ 306,420
106,995
575,000
112,966

$ 1 ,101 ,381

$ 4,133,019
300,614

$ 4,433,633
$ 5,535,014

$ 46,273,076
9,500

4,887,575
$ 51,170,151

157,798
547,892

29,589
735,279

39,496
$ 39,496
$ 774,775

$ 3,131,714

13,342,060
@
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Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa
Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Ghanges in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Business-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Operating revenues:
Charges for services
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Contractual services
Supplies and equipment
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income

Nonoperating revenues (expenses) :

lnterest revenue
lnterest expense
Gain (loss) on disposal of equipment
Property taxes and assessments

Nonoperating revenues (expenses),net

lncome before contributions and transfers

Capital contributions
Transfers in
Transfers out

Contributions and transfers, net

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning

Net assets, ending

See notes to financial statements

Sewer Fund

4,012,652
2,875

4.015,527

$ 1,158,254
697,969
220,466
908,888

$ 2,985,577

$ 1,029,950

$ 50,583
(201,801)

1,748

$ (149,470)

880,480

$ 77,560
220,698

(293,858)

$ 4,400

884,880

33,168,122

Refuse Fund

$ 2,363,725
822,659

$ 3,186,384

$ 1,066,099
1,084,598

107,237
135,362

$ 2,393,296

$ 793,088

$ 13,022

(17,517)

$ (4,495)

$ 788,593

$
937,663

(688,955)

248,708

$ 1,037,301

2,823,024
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Storm Water Fund

Busi ness-type Activities -
Enterprise Funds

Governmental
Activities-

lnternal
Service FundsTotal

787,942 7,164,319
825,534

$ 6,185,563
612,778

$ 787,942 $ 7,989,853

$ 2,421,996
1,898,886

405,944
1,384,265

$ 6,798,341

$ 867,225
3,938,298

925,352
436,209

$ 197,643
116,319
78,241

340,015

$ 732,218

55.724

$ 13,058_

$ 6,1 1 1,091

$ 1,878,762

$ 76,663
(201,801)

(17,517)
1,748

6,167,084

S 631,257

$ 157,436

(164,741)

$ 13,058 $ (140,907) $ (7,305)

$ 68,782 $ 1,737,855 $ 623,952

$ 51,235
103,818

(361,925)

$ 128,795
1,262,179

(1,344,738)

$
35,048

(214,320)

$ (206,872)

$ (138,090)

13,394,914

$ 46,236

$ 1,784,091

49,386,060

$ (179,272\

$ 444,680

16,029,094

$ 13,256,824 $ 51,170,151 $ 16,473,774
=:-
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City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACT]VITIES
Receipts from customers and users
Receipts from interfund services
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Property taxes and assessments

Net cash provided by (used for) noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACT¡VITIES
Net acquisition of property and equipment
Capital contributions
Principal paid on debt maturities
lnterest paid

Net cash (used for) capital and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACT¡VITIES
lnterest received on investments

Net increase (decrease) in cash

CASH BALANCES, Beginning
CASH BALANCES, Ending

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash provided by
operating activities:

Operating income
Adjustments to reconcile operating income

to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:

(lncrease) decrease in:
Customer and other receivables
lnventories

lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued and other liabilities
Net cash provided by operating activities

See notes to financial statements

Business-type
Activities -

Enterprise Funds
Sewer
Fund

$ 3,983,822

(970,005)
(1,177,901\

$ 1,835,916

$ 220,698
(293,858)

3,344
$ (69,816)

$ (1,562,544)
77,560

(1,315,000)
(198,263)

$ (2,998,247)

$ 82,051

$ (1,150,096)

6.038.600

_-$_4,8885ø_

$ 1,029,950

908,888

(28,383)
(6,480)

(68,059)

_q_j,835,9rc_
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Refuse
Fund

Storm Water
Fund

Business-type Activities -

Enterprise Funds
Governmental

Activities -

lnternal
Service Funds

$
6,185,563

(4,373,037)
(861,706)

$ 950,820

35,048
(214,320)

g (179,272\

(201,557_l_

$ (201,557)

239.452

$ 809,443

631,257

436,209

(269,317)
(25,868)
178,539

Total

$ 3,194,308

(1,115,755)
(1,067,539)

$ 1,011,014

937,663
(688,955)

$ (1,123,979)

$ (1,123,979)

$ 18,248

$ 153,991

884.656

_qj,038,647_

793,088

135,362

1,688
(9,120)
89,996

248.708 $ (258,106)

$ 788,455

(196,251)
(218,156)
374,048

103,819
(361,925)

(155,054)
51,235

$ (103,819)

$ 17,424

29,547

55,724

340,015

513

(22,204)
$ 374,048

$ 7,966,585

(2,282,011)
(2,463,596)

$ 3,220,978

$ 1,262,180
(1,344,738)

3,344
$ (79,214\

$ (2,841,577)
128,795

(1 ,315,000)
(198,263)

$ (4,226,045\

$ 117,723

$ (966,558)

$ 1,878,762

1,384,265

(26,182)
(15,600)

(267\
$ _3,220,979_
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Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Cedar Falls is a municipal corporation governed by an elected mayor and seven-member

council. As required by accountíng principles generally accepted in the United States of America,

these financial statements present the City and its component units, entities for which the City is

considered to be financially accountable. The discretely presented component units are reported in a

separate column in the combined financial statements to emphasize that they are legally separate

from the City. The discretely presented electric, gas, water, and communications utilities each have a

December 31 year end.

Discretely Presented Component Unfs. The electric, gas, water, and communications utilities serve

all the citizens of the City and are governed by a five-member board appointed by the mayor of the

City of Cedar Falls. The rates for user charges and bond issuance authorizations are approved by the

City Council, and the legal liability for the general obligation portion of the Utilities' debt remains with

the City.

Complete financial statements for the Utilities may be obtained at the administrative offices.

Cedar Falls Utilities
Utility Parkway
Cedar Falls, lowa 50613

Jointly Governed Organizations. The City also participates in severaljointly governed organizations

for which the City is not financially accountable or that the nature and significance of the relationship

with the City are such that exclusion does not cause the City's financial statements to be misleading or

incomplete. City officials are members of the following boards and commissions: Black Hawk County

Consolidated Public Safety Communications Center, Black Hawk County Solid Waste Management

Commission, Black Hawk County Criminal Justice lnformation Systems and Metropolitan Transit

Authority.

B. Government-wideandFundFinancialStatements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of

activities) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its component units.

For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements.

Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are

reported separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and

charges for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally

separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of net assets presents the assets and liabilities, with the difference reported as net

assets. Net assets are reported in three categories.

lnvested in capital assefs, net of related debt consists of capital assets, net of accumulated

depreciation and reduced by outstanding balances for bonds, notes, and other debt that are

attributed to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Resfricfed nef assefs result when constraints placed on net asset use are either externally

imposed or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.
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IJnrestricted nef assefs consist of net assets that do not meet the definition of the two preceding

categories. Unrestricted net assets often have constraints on resources that are imposed by

management, but can be removed or modified.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function

or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable

with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants

who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function

or segment and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital

requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among

program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major

individual governmental funds and major individual proprietary funds are reported as separate

columns in the fund financial statements. All remaining governmental funds are aggregated and

reported as other governmental funds.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund financial statements. Revenues

are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the

timing of the related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they

are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements

imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources

measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon

as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are

collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period.

For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60

days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is

incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures

related to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is

due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, interest, fines and forfeitures, and special assessments are

susceptible to accrual. Sales taxes collected and held by the state at year-end on behalf of the City

are also recognized as revenue. Other receipts and taxes become measurable and available when

cash is received by the City and are recognized as revenue at that time.

Entitlements and shared revenues are recorded at the time of receipt or earlier if the susceptible to

accrual criteria are met. Expenditure-driven grants are recognized as revenue when the qualifying

expenditures have been incurred, all other grant requirements have been met, and the criteria for

accrual has been met.

The Gity reports the following major governmental funds:

The general fund is the City's primary operating fund. lt accounts for all financial resources of the

general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
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The hospitalfund accounts for the lease income derived from Sartori Memorial Hospital.

The TIF fund accounts for property taxes received through tax increment financing.

The sfreef repair fund accounts for local option sales tax received from the state to be used to

repair streets.

The sfreef construction fund accounts for state revenues allocated to the City to be used to

maintain and improve the City's streets.

The debf seruice fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by

proprietary funds.

The FEMA fund accounts for the proceeds and expenditures related to disaster assistance and

recovery.

The bond fund accounts for all bond proceeds not related to proprietary funds and all the related

capital projects associated with the bond sales.

The City reports the following major proprietary funds:

The sewerfund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the City's sanitary sewer system.

The refuse fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the Ci$'s garbage collection.

The sform water fund accounts for the operations and maintenance of the city's storm water

system.

Additionally, the City reports the following fund type:

lnternal service funds account for operations that provide services to other departments or

agencies of the City, or to other governments, on a cost-reimbursement basis. These include

data processing, vehicle maintenance, health insurance, health insurance severance, payroll, and

risk management activities.

Private-sector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,

generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to the

extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental

Accounting Standards Board. Governments also have the option of following subsequent private-

sector guidance for their business-type activities and enterprise funds, subject to this same limitation.

The government has elected not to follow subsequent private-sector guidance.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide

financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are payments between the government's refuse

and sewer functions and various other functions of the government. Elimination of the charges would

distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,

services, or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and

contributions. lnternally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as

program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include alltaxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating

revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods

in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues

of the refuse fund, sewer fund, and the government's internal service funds are charges to customers
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D.

for services. Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of

services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses

not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to

use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

Deposifs and I nvestments

The City's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits, and

short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of

acquisition.

State statutes authorize the City and the Utility to invest public funds in obligations of the United

States government, its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of

deposit at federally insured depository institutions approved by the City Council; prime eligible

bankers acceptances; certain high-rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements;

certain registered open-end management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts;

and warrants or improvement certificates of a drainage district. lnvestments of the City and the

Utility are reported at fair value. Due to legal and budgetary reasons, the General Fund is

assigned a portion of the investment earnings associated with the other funds. These funds are

Street Construction, Debt Service, and the Cemetery Perpetual Care Funds.

Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that are representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at

the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current

portion of interfund loans).

All trade and property tax receivables are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles.

The County Treasurer bills and collects taxes for the City. Taxes for the year ended June 30,

2010, were certified with the County during the preceding fiscal year and were due in two equal

installments by September 30, 2009 and March 31,2010. Property tax receivable is recognized

on the levy or lien date, which is the date the tax asking is certified by the City to the County Board

of Supervisors. Any County collections on the 2009-2010 tax levy remitted to the City within sixty

days subsequent to June 30, 2010, are recorded as property tax revenues. Taxes not collected

and remitted to the City within sixty days subsequent to June 30, 2010, are delinquent and have

been recorded as receivables and deferred revenue.

By statute, the City is required to certify its budget in March of each year for the subsequent fiscal

year. However, by statute, the tax asking and budget certification for the following fiscal year

becomes effective on the first day of that year. Although the succeeding year property tax

receivable has been recorded, the related revenue is deferred and will not be recognized as

revenue until the year for which it is levied.

1.

2.
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Inventories and Prepaid ltems

lnventories in the governmental fund types are valued at cost using the first-in/first-out method.

The costs of governmental fund type inventories are recognized as expenditures when purchased.

lnventories in the proprietary fund types and component unit are valued at the lower of first-in/first-

out cost or market, except for fuel inventories of the Electric Utility, which are valued at the lower

of last-in/first-out method cost or market. The cost of proprietary fund type and component unit

inventories are recognized as expenses when consumed.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are

recorded as prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements.

Restricted Asseús

Certain assets of the component units are restricted because of applicable bond provisions.

CapiúalAsseús

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.9., roads,

bridges, sidewalks, and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-

type activities columns in the government-wide statement of net assets. Capital assets are

defined by the government as equipment with initial, individual cost of $2,500 or greater or a
purchase of land, land improvements, building, or infrastructure with a value of $5,000 or greater

and an estimated useful life of greater than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical cost

or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded as

estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or

materially extend asset lives are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

lnterest incurred during the construction phase of capital assets of business-type activities is

included as part of the capitalized value of the assets constructed.

Capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful

lives:

Computer Equipment

Equipment

Office Equipment

Vehicles

Parking Lots

Furniture

Large Vehicles

Traffic Signals

10 years

1 0-30 years

1 0-30 years

10-20 years

15 years

20 years

20-40 years

20 years

Streets

Buildings

Land lmprovements

Storm Water

Bridges

Lift Stations

Sewer

Historic Buildings

30 years

40-50 years

20-40 years

40 years

45 years

50 years

50 years

1 00 years
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6. Compensated Absences

City employees accumulate vacation, sick leave, and comp{ime hours for subsequent use or for

payment upon termination, death, or retirement. Earned vacation pay and a maximum of one-half

of all unused sick leave may be paid upon termination of employment.

All severance is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fund financial

statements. A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental fund financial statements

only for employees that have resigned or retired. The compensated absence liability has been

computed based on rates of pay in effect on June 30, 2010.

Long-term Obligations

ln the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long-term

debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental

activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of net assets. Bond

premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-

line method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount.

ln the fund financialstatements, governmentalfund types recognize bond premium and discounts,

as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is

reported as other financing sources. Premiums on debt issuances are reported as other financing

sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. lssuance costs,

whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service

expenditures.

Fund Equity

ln the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for

amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use

for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that

are subject to change.

7.

8.
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Note 2. Stewardship, Compliance, and Accountability

Budgetary information

The City prepares and adopts an annual budget on a function basis for the City as a whole, rather

than at the fund level, as prescribed by lowa statutes. The state of lowa mandates that annual

budgets for the fiscal year beginning July 1 be certified to the County Auditor no later than March 15

preceding the beginning of the fiscal year. The review and adoption of the budget for the City is in

accordance with state laws and City budget procedures as stated in City Code, recodified November

1g71, and amended by ordinance adoption thereafter. Budget proposals for all operating department

requests are conducted by the Department of Administrative Services who prepares, for the Mayor's

consideration, a preliminary budget by January 1 of each year for the coming fiscal year. The budget

proposal presented to the City Council by the Mayor and Director of Administrative Services is a

complete financial plan for the upcoming fiscal year. The proposal is submitted on or before the first

Monday of February. The City Council holds various budget meetings with the Mayor, Director of

Administrative Services, department heads, and boards and commissions, as well as holding a public

hearing prior to adopting the budget. The Council adopts the budget by resolution and certifies it to

the County Auditor by the 1Sth of March preceding the beginning of the fiscal year. This budget

becomes the appropriation for operations of the City.

The adopted budget presents expenditures in nine functions- Public Safety, Public Works, Health and

Social Services, Culture and Recreation, Community and Economic Development, General

Government, Debt Service, Capital Projects, and Business-type Activities. The legal level of control

(the level on which expenditures may not legally exceed appropriations) is the function level.

Appropriations as adopted lapse at the end of the fiscal year.

Amendments to the City budget are considered annually as funding sources are available.

Management is not authorized to amend the budget or to make budgetary transfers between functions

without the approval of the City Council. An additional levy of property taxes is not allowed by state

law. The City budget for the current year may be amended for any of the following purposes:

o To permit the appropriation and expenditure of unexpended, unencumbered fund

balances on hand at the end of the preceding fiscal year.

. To permit the appropriation and expenditure of amounts anticipated being available from

sources other than proper$ taxation.

. To permit transfers between funds as prescribed by state law.

. To permit transfers between functions.

The Council adopts the amended budget by resolution and certifies it to the County Auditor by May 31

of the budget year. The amended budget becomes the appropriation for operations of the City. The

City Council adopted one budget amendment resolution during the year ended June 30, 2010.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.9., purchase orders,

contracts) outstanding at year-end are reported as reservations of fund balance and do not constitute

expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be reappropriated and honored during the

subsequent year.

Due to the emphasis placed on monitoring budgets, as a result of limited resources to provide City

services, major classifications such as personal services, capital outlays, contractual services, and

commodities are monitored throughout the year by the Department of Administrative Services.
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Monthly reports are prepared by department and activity. Any major deviations must be approved by

the Department of Administrative Services and the Mayor. While the legal level of control is the

program level of expenditure, departments are responsible for not expending more than the amount of

the appropriation for each activity within their area of responsibility, unless approved by the

Department of Administrative Services and the Mayor.

The City budgets all receipts, disbursements, and interfund and intrafund transfers on the cash basis

plus recorded accounts payable. The budget amounts included in this report are the final cash basis

budget for the year for all funds excluding the trust and agency funds, which are not budgeted for by

the City. Budgeted interfund transfers and intrafund transfers have been eliminated in the following

statement of program disbursements - budget and actual.

lndividual fund budgets are, in all cases where appropriations are required, the same as the

appropriation amounts. ln the case of the General Fund and most of the special revenue funds,

unexpended budgeted amounts lapse at the end ofthe budget year.

Deficit Fund Balances

The FEMA fund, a major capital projects fund, has a deficit fund balance of $1 ,740,555. The deficit

fund balance is expected to be recovered through future federal and state reimbursements.

Community Center and Senior Services fund, a nonmajor special revenue fund, has a deficit fund

balance of $1,373. The deficit is expected to be recovered through future reimbursements.

Note 3. Detailed Notes On All Funds

Deposits and lnvestments

The City's deposits in banks and credit unions at June 30,2010 were entirely covered by federal

depository insurance, collateralized with securities or letters of credit held by the City or the City's

agent in the City's name or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of

lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be

no loss of public funds.

The City is authorized by statute to invest public funds in obligations of the United States government,

its agencies and instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally

insured depository institutions approved by the City Council; prime eligible bankers acceptances;

certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase agreements; certain registered open-end

management investment companies; certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement

certificates of a drainage district.

Cash balances as of June 30, 2010, consist of the following:

Cash - unrestricted

The Ci$ had no investments meeting the disclosure requirements of
Standards Board Statement No. 3, as amended by Statement No. 40.

$ r9É3e{43

Governmental Accounting
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A reconciliation of cash as shown on the combined balance sheet for the primary government follows:

Carrying amount of dePosits

Cash - Governmental Activities

Cash - Business-type Activities

Total

Cash - unrestricted

Cash - restricted

Electric Gas Water
Utility UtilitY Ut¡lity

$ 13,797,916 $ 8,594,324 g 2,971,828

975,083 310,463 123,807

lnterest Rate Risk: The City's investment policy limits the investments of operating funds (funds

expected to be expended in the current budget year or within fifteen months of receipt) in instruments

that mature within 397 days. Funds not identified as operating funds may be invested in instruments

with maturities longer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and use of

the City.

Credit Risk The Cig's investment policy limits investments in commercial paper and other corporate

debt to the top two highest classifications. The City did not invest in any commercial paper or other

corporate debt during the Year.

Concentration of credit risk: The City's investment policy does not allow for a prime bankers'

acceptance or commercial paper and other corporate debt balances to be greater than ten percent of

its total deposits and investments. The policy also limits the amount that can be invested in a single

issue to five percent of its total deposits and investments. The City held no such investments during

the year.

Custodial credit risk - deposrfs: ln the case of deposits, this is the risk that in the event of a bank

failure, the government's deposits may not be returned to it. The City's deposits are entirely covered

by federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the

Code of lowa. This chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure

there will be no loss of public funds.

Custodial credit risk - investments: For an investment, this is the risk that, in the event of the failure of

the counterparly, the government will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral

securities that are in the possession of an outside pafi. The City did not hold any investments during

the year.

The component units' deposits were entirely covered by Federal depository insurance, collateralized

with securities or letters of credit held by the entity or its agent in the entity's name, or by a multiple

financial institution collateral pool in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa. This chapter

provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no loss of public

funds.

Cash balances as of December 31,2010, consist of the following:

_9_r9Ér443
$ 72,432,574

6,907,269

$ 79,339,843

Communications
Utility

$ 4,880,448

1,278,377

s__t!tt2pg 9___!p91J9Z-
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At year-end, the Component Units had the following investments and maturities:

Type of

lnvestnent

lnvestment Maturities ( ln Years)

Utility

Electric: U.S. government

and agency

securities $ 1,929,408 $ $ 1,929,408

A reconciliation of cash and investments as shown on the statement for net assets for the component

units follows:

Less than 1 1to3 Total

Carrying amount of deposits

Carrying amount of certificates

Carrying amount of investments
Total

Cash

Cash - Restricted

lnvestments:
Certificates of deposit

Certificates of deposit - restricted

U.S. government and agency

securities - restricted
Total

1.929.408
$ 29,558,378 $ 8,904,787 $ 3,095,635 $ 7,061,825

Electric
Utility

fi 14,772,999
12,855,971

Gas
Utility

$ 8,904,787

Water
Utilitv

$ 3,095,635

Communications
Utilitv

$ 6,158,825
903,000

$ 13,797,916 $ 8,594,324 $ 2,971,828 $

975,083 310,463 123,807

6,285,058
6,570,913 --

4,880,448
1,278,377

539,000
364,000

1,929,408

$ 29,55S,3?S $ 8,90

B. Receivable

On June 30, 2010, the City has recorded a $3,140,360 receivable for library, recreation, and cultural

contributions held by the Cedar Falls Civic Foundation. The funds will be used to support library

services, recreation services, and the cultural center, therefore is reported as an asset to the General

Fund.
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c. CapitalAssets

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2010 was as follows:

Primary Government

Beginning

Balance I ncreases

Ending

Decreæes Balance

Governmental activities :

Ca¡ital assets, not being

depreciated:

Land

Con struction i n progress

Total capital æsets, not

bdng depreciated

Ca¡italassets, being

dçreciated:

Buildings

Land improvements

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastrrcture

Total capital assets, being

depreciated

$ 15,290,332

10,383,212

5,072,987

6,445,492

$ 20,363,319

6,684,633 10,144,071

g 25,673,54 $ 1 1,518,479 $ 6,684,633 $ 30,507,390

$ 26,918,155

12,108,013

15,429,442

130,473,896

104,192

328,515

528,401

8,881,637

50,500

38,740

672,459

g %,971,847

12,397,788

15,285,384

139,355,533

$ 184,929,506

$ 6,789,930

2,969,725

8,167,650

54,339,492

655,341

497,963

880,308

4,221,021

46,287 $

5,694

492,628

7,398,984

3,461,994

8,5s5,330

58,560,503

9,842,745 $ 761,699 $ 194',010,552

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Land improvements

Machinery and equipnent

lnfrastrrcture

Total accu mu lated depreciation

Total capital æsets, being

depreciated, net

Governmental activities capital

asset, net

s 72,266,787 $ 6,254,633 $ 544,609 $ Tt,976,811

g 112,662,719 $ 3,588,112 $ 217,090 $ 116,033,741

$ 138,336,263 $ 15,106,591 $ 6,901,723 $ 146,541,131
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Beginning

Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending
Balance

Busi ness-type activities:

Capital assets, not being

depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being

depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure

Total capital assets, being

depreciated

Less accum ulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure

Total ac cu mu lated depreciation

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net

Bu si nes s-type activities capital

assets, net

5,524.992 g 2,082,671 g 2,u6,476 5,261,187

1,612,581

3,912,411

$-
2,082,671

$-
2.U6,476

1,612,581

3,648,606

$ t t ,542,7%
6,978,343

40.734,657

$ 1 ,172,000
533,828

1,399,553

$ 12,714,794

104,829 7,407,342

42,134,210

$ 59,255,794

$ 4,639,459

1,575,476

1 1 ,353,140

$ 17,568,075

$ 3,105,381

g 246,823

256,575

880,867

$ 62,256,346

$ 4,886,282

1,744,740

12,234,007

$ 18,865,029

$ 43,391,317

104,829

$ 1,384,265 $ 87,311

$ 41 ,687,719 g 1,721,116 $ 17,518

87,311

$ 47,212,711

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities :

$ 3,803,787 $ 2,363,994 $ 48,652,504

Public safety

Public uorks

Health and social services

Culture and recreation

Community and economic development

General government

Capital assets held by government's internal service funds are charged to

the various functions based on their usage of the assets

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-gpe activities

Sewer

Refuse

Storm Water
Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

93,845

4,290,049

147,128

1,047 ,415
80,270

159,717

436,209

6,254,633

908,888

135,362

340,015
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Construction Commitments

The City has active construction projects as of June 30,2010. Atyear-end the City's commitments

with contractors are as follows:

Project
Authorization

Expended Remaining
to Date Commitment

Big Woods Campground

Cedar Falls Trails

Center Street Streetscape

City Hall Remodel

Disinfection

Dry Run Creek Culverts

Floodwall System lmprov.

Greenhill Road Extension

Hwy 58 Ped. Bridge

Northern lndustrial Park

Public Works Complex

Ridgeway Ave. Reconstruction

Seal Coat

Sidewalk Repair

Southwest Branch Dry Run Channel lmprov.

Southwest Dry Run Creek

State Street

Street reconstruction

Street restoration

Technology Parkway

University Ave. & College Street Signal

West 23'd Street

West 23'd Street Streetscape

West Viking Road

_t_11114f8, _9_16wI

531,540

218,139

57,590

142,987

1,699,800

559,256

74,976
388,800

233,000

5,943,559

9,810,750

266,000

165,179

175,097

39,500

1,079,361

1,474,762

6,319,429

2,617,013

2,236,608

136,560

548,816

128,675

3,867,592

87,884

49,453

142,487

1,039,605

345,647

245,850

40,710

517,785

264,184

?4,0;;
20,707

1,011,274

228,049

4,386,599

2J69,614
2,234,855

133,150

145,671

3,740,676

443,656

218,139

8,137

500

660,195

213,609

74,976
142,950

192,290

5,425,774

9,810,750

1,816

165,179

101,059

18,793

68,087

1,246,713

1,932,830

447,399
1,753

3,410

403,145

128,675

126,916

$ 21,836,751
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Discretelv Presented Comoonent Units

Ac¡vity for the Electric Utility for the year ended December 31, 2009, was as

follows:
Beginning
Balance

Ending

lncreases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not being
depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not
being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings
Land improvements
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure
Total capital assets, being

depreciated

Less accum ulated depreciation for:

Buildings
Land improvements
Machinery and equipment
lnfrastructure

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net

Electric Utility capital assets, net

10,812,093

11,803,797 g 28,517,773 $ 35,120,015 $ 5,201,555

991,704 $ 80,279
28,437,494

$

35,120,015
1,071,983
4,129,572

$ 13,211,579
4,683

18,023,629
126,410,589

8,787,979

1,679,35;
24,572,401

$ 80,995

200,647
19,171,387

8 21,918,563
4,683

19,502,338
131,811,603

$ 157,650,480 $ 35,039,736 $ 19,453,029 $ 173,237 ,187

g 8,627,275 $
4,486

6,980,759

636,199 $
21

1,593,916

88,715 g 9,174,758
4,508

200,647 8,374,028
51,207,878 3,013,608 1,692,466 52,529,020

-

$ 66,820,398 $ 5,243,744 $ 1,981 ,828 S 70,082,314

90,830,082 $ 29,795,992 g 17,471,201 $ 103,154,873

$ 102,633,879 $ 58,313,765 $ 52,591,216 $ 108,356,428
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Activity for the Gas Utility for the year ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:

Beginning

Balance lncreases Decreases

Ending

Balance

Capital assets, not being

depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not

being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure

Total capital assets, being

depreciated

Less accum ulated depreciation

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net

Gas Utility capital assets, net

$ 554,976

$ 1,269,118

667,066

16,867,021

g 707,937

20,487

351,432

41,350

513,626

$--
797,563

$--
1,079,857

$ 1,079,857

41,350

231,332

g 272,682

$ 1,942,909

677,854
17,146,851

797,563

34,146

9,699

$ 18,803,205

304,255

223,980

7,082,496

$ 7,6'10,731

$ 1,079,856

$ 30,904

36,397

631,377

115,447 ç 19,767,614

34,147

9,699

81,237

$ 301,012

250,678

7,632,636

$ 698,678 $ 125,083 $ 8,184,326

$ 11,192,474 g 381,178

$ 11,747,450 $ 1,178,741

$ (e,636) $ 11,583,288

$ 1,070,221 $ 11,855,970
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Activity for the Water Utility for the year ended December 31, 2009 was as

follows:

Beginning Ending

Balance lncreases Decreases Balance

Capital assets, not being

depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not

being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure

Total capital assets, being

depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure

$ 63,466 $ -$ $ 63,466

1,158,697 1,344,482 1,931,925 571,254

ç 1,222,163 $ 1,344,482 $ 1,931,925 ç 634,720

$ 477,176 $ 322,890 $ 1,003 $ 799,063

432,637 8,931 23,021 418,547

22,689,315 1,600,103 109,820 24,179,598

$ 23,599,128 $ 1,931,924 $ 133,844 $ 25,397,208

$ 115,204 $ 11,032 $ 1,003 $ 125,233

196,582 20,903 23,021 194,464

6,875,600 486,309 110,972 7,250,937

Totalaccumulated depreciation $ 7,187,386 $ 518,244 $ 134,996 $ 7,570,634

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net $ 16,411,742 $ 1,413,680 $ (1,152) $ 17,826,574

Water Utility capitalassets, net $ 17,633,905 $ 2,758,162 $ 1,930,773 $ 18,461,294
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Activity for the Communications Utility for the year ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:

Beginning

Balance

$ 446,402

$ 279,701

17,034,888

lncreases Decreases

Ending

Balance

Capital assets, not being

depreciated:

Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not

being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure

Total capital assets, being

depreciated

Less accum ulated depreciation

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being

depreciated, net

Comm unications Utility capital

assets, net

Leases

446,402 $ 2,688,668 $ 2,662,003 473,067

$ 2,688,668 $ 2,662,003 473,067

$ 49,817

2,612,186 1,156,806
$ 329,518

18,490,268

$ 17,314,589 $ 2,662,003

$ 204,900 $ 15,467

9,218,956 1,339,949

$ 1,156,806

$--
1,156,925

$ 18,819,786

$ 220,367

9,401,980

$ 9,622.347

7,890,733 $ 1,306,587 $ 9,197,439

$ 8,337,135 $ 3,995,255 $ 2,661,884 $ 9,670,506

Sartori Memorial Hospital

On January 1, 1997, the operations of Sartori Memorial Hospital (Hospital) were sold to Covenant

Health Systems, lnc. As part of this sale, the City entered into a lease agreement with Sartori

Memorial Hospital, lnc. (SMH), whereas the City will lease to SMH the land and buildings owned by

the City and used in the Hospital's operations. The initial term of the lease shall be for a period of 25

years, with variable lease payments each year. The lease may be extended for up to three additional

terms, with each additional term being for a period of five years. At the termination of this lease,

Covenant Health Systems, lnc. will also pay to the City an amount of $660,378, which represents the

liability arising from accrued vacation of Hospital personnel as of December 31, 1996. The present

value of this liability as of June 30, 2010, is recorded as a receivable and deferred revenue in the

Hospital Fund in the amount of $430,824.

Grystal Distribution Services

On November 12,2001, the City entered into a lease agreement with Crystal Distribution Services,

lnc. for the former Top Air building constructed in the City's industrial and technology park. The lease

was amended on November 24, 2003. The lease agreement is for a period of twelve years with

various monthly payments ranging from $10,000 to $20,000 payable to the City. Crystal Distribution

Services will have the option to purchase the building upon expiration of the lease.

$ 9,423,856 $ 1,355,416 $ 1,156,925

$ (1 1e)

D.
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The leases for the Hospital and with Crystal Distribution Services are both being treated as operating

leases by the City. The future minimum lease payments for these leases are as follows:

Year Ending

J une 30, Hospital Building

2011 $ 31 ,796 $ 143,100

2012

2013

2014
2015

2016-2020

2021

31,796

158,977

31,796

31,796 143,100

31 ,796 143,100

31,796 131,175

Total $349,753$560,475

The capitalassets being leased through the operating leases are as follows:

Governm ental Activities

Land

Building

Less:

Accumulated depreciation (1,770,250) (731,437)

Total $ 4,254,781 $ 1,422,488::

E. Long-term Debt

General Obligation Bonds

Unmatured general obligation bonds totaling $10,008,867, net of unamortized discount and

unamortized deferred amount on refunding of $86,133, are outstanding as of June 30, 2010. These

bonds bear interest with rates ranging from 2.30% to 3.90%; mature in varying annual amounts
through June 30, 2018; and were originally issued for $14,310,000. Annualdebt service requirements

to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows:

Year Ending GovernmentalAdivities Business-type Activities
June 30, Principal lnterest Principal lnterest

Hospital Building

$ 151,4e4 $ -
5,873,537 2,153,925

1,020,000 200,365 575,000 160,498

I,055,000 163,135 s90,000 143,262

860,000 124,100 610,000 124,673

925,000 92,280 635,000 1M,623

350,000 57,593 660,000 82,985

1,150,000 90,315 1,665,000 114,148

201 1

2012

2013

2014

2015

201G2018
Totat -E- 5p60.000 -E 7z7,TBB -S- 4,i35"000 -F- rcoj 89
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Tax lncrement Financing Bonds

Unmatured tax increment financing bonds totaling 92,974,583 net of unamortized deferred amount on

refunding of $109,583, are outstanding as of June 30, 2010. These bonds bear an interest rate of
3.00%; mature June 30, 2014; and were originally issued for $2,865,000. Annual debt service
requirements to maturiÇ for tax increment financing bonds are as follows:

Year Ending

June 30,

Governm ental Activities

Princípal lnterest

2011

2012

2013

2014

Total

Year Ending

June 30,

850,000

890,000

550,000

575,000

Govenmental Activities

95,978

60,450

33,750

17,250

2,865,000 207,428

GapitalLoan Notes

Unmatured capital loan notes totaling $9,760,300, net of unamortized discount and unamortized
deferred amount on refunding of $35,300 are outstanding as of June 30, 2010. These notes bear
interest at rates of 1.00% to 3.80%; mature in varying annual amounts through June 30, 2024; and
were originally issued for $10,530,000. Annual debt service requirements to maturing for capital loan

notes are as follows:

Principal

1,365,000

1,470,000

1,235,000

1,265,000

680,000

3,010,000

700,000

9,725,000 1,548,680

lnterest

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016-2020

2021-2024

Total

299,705

255,460

214,940

180,300

142,892

389,085

66,298
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As of June 30, 2010, the outstanding general obligation debt of the City did not exceed its legal debt
margin computed as follows:

Estimated actual valuation of taxable propefi within the City

Debt limit - 5% of totalactualvaluation

Debt applicable to debt limit:

General obligation bonds

Generalobligation bonds - component unit

Legaldebt margin

$ 2,376,935,006

93,841,750

All tax-exempt debt issued by the City is subject to IRS arbitrage rebate unless the Ci$ meets the $5
million small issuers exemption in a given year. As of June 30, 2010, the City had no arbitrage
liability.

During FY10, the City issued $3,440,000 in capital loan notes. The proceedswill be used forvarious
projects including College Hill Streetscape, West 1'r Street Reconstruction and Northern Cedar Falls

lndustrial Park infrastructure improvement.

During FY10, the City also issued $5,135,000 to current refund five outstanding issuances. The
refunding was undertaken to reduce total future debt service payments. The transaction resulted in
an economic gain of $260,117 and a reduction of $268,492 in future debt service payments. Also
during FY10, sewer reserve cash in the amount of $520,000 was used to pay off the 2004 sewer
revenue bonds.

118,846,750

22,685,000

2,320,000
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Debt Summary

Following is a summary of the City's debt transactions
indebtedness of the City as of that date.

for the year ended June 30, 2010, and the total bonded

Governmental Activities:
General obligation bonds:

Corporate purpose

Corporate purpose

Corporate purpose

Corporate purpose

Less unamortized discount
Less unamortized deferred
amount on refunding

Tax increment financing bonds:
Tax increment financing
Tax increment financing
Tax increment fínancing

Less unamortized discount
Less unamortized deferred
amount on refunding

Capital Loan Notes:

Corporate Purpose
Corporate Purpose
Refunding

Less unamortized discount
Less unamortized deferred
amount on refunding

Governmental activity total
long-term debt

Busi ness-type activities
General obligation bonds:

Sewer
Sewer

Less unamortized discount

Revenue bonds:
Sewer
Less unamortized discount

Business{ype activity total
long-term debt

$ 9,435,000
34,122

60,913

$ 9,339,965

1,035,000
2,725,000

Date of
lssue

Balance
Beginning

of Year

lssued/
lncurred

During Year

Redeemed/
Paid

During Year

1,265,000
1,340,000

530,000
940,000

Balance
End of
Year

Amount Due
Within One

Year

2002
2004
2004
2006

1,265,000
1,340,000

530,000
6,300,000 5,360,000 1,020,000

$ 4,075,000
24,756

11,127

$ 5,360,000
9,366

49,786

$ 1,020,000

$ 4,039,117 $ 5,300,848 $ 1,020,000

2001
2004
2010 2,865,000

1,035,000
2,725,000

2,865,000 850,000
$ 3,760,000

14,976

$ 3,745p24

$ 2,865,000 n .r?î:3?3

(r 15,603) (6,020)

$ 2,980,603 $ 3,751,044

$ 2,865,000 $ 850,000

(109,583)

$ 2,974,583 850,000

2008 $
2009
2010

4,435,000 $ --
3,440,000
2,270,000

420,000_ $ 4,015,000
3,440,000
2,270,000

$ 450,000
165,000
750,000

$ 4,435,000 $ 5,710,000 $

17,587 28,724

(82,e12)

$ 5,764,188$ 4,417,413

$ 17,502,402

$ 421,301 $ 1,365,000

$ 8,744,791 $ 8,211,462 $ 18,035,731 $ 3,235,000

420,000

3,017

(4,318)

$ 9,725,000

43,294

(78,594)

$ 9,760,300

$ 1,365,000

2006 $
2008

1,350,000 $ --
3,935,000

$ 170,000 $ 1,180,000 $ 180,000
380,000 3,555,000 395,000

$ 5,285,000
30,591

$ 5,254,409 $ 546,390 $ 4,708,019

$--

575,000

$ 575,000

$--

550,000 $ 4,735,000 $
3,610 26,981

2004 $ 765,000 $
3,076

765,000
3,076

$ 761,924 $ 761,924 $

$ 6,016,333 $ $ 1,308,314 $ 4,708,019 $ 575,000
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Revenue Bonds and lnstallment Agreements - Electric Ut¡lity

The Series 2003, 2005 and 2007 revenue bonds require annual principal payments, due December 1,

and semiannual interest payments, due June 1 and December 1. lnterest rates throughout the term

of the bonds are in a range between 3.00% and 4.50%. The bonds are secured by the future net

revenues of the Utility. Long-term debt matures and bears interest as follows:

Component Unit -

Revenue Bonds

Year Ending Principal

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015-2019

2020-2024

2025-2026

Revenue Bonds:

Series 2003

Series 2005

Series 2007

Total revenue bonds

Less: Unamortized

discount

Add: Unamortized

premium

Totallong{erm debt

1,595,000

1,650,000

1,720,000

2,690,000

2,805,000

15,935,000

18,850,000

2,810,000

$ 48,055,000 19,014,567

1,967,970

1,908,795

1,846,707

1,781,106

1,679,707

6,614,890

3,029,455

185,937

The bond resolution provides certain covenants relating to the collection, segregation, and distribution
of revenues from customers; places certain restríctions on the future of borrowing and leasing or

disposition of assets; and requires that minimum insurance coverage be maintained.

Debt Summary - Electric Utility

Long-term debt activity for the year ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:

Beginning
Balance Additions Reductions

Ending
Balance

Amounts
Due Within
One Year

8,775,000

23,195,000

17,620,000

49,590,000

602,090

218,627

265,000

630,000

640,000

1,535,000

88,315

30,402

8,510,000

22,565,000

16,980,000

48,055,000

841,700

282,488

270,000

655,000

670,000

1,595,000

327,925

94,263

$ 49,206,537 $ (233,662) g 1,477,087 $ 47,495,788 $ 1,595,000
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General Obligation Gapital Loan Notes - Gommunications Ut¡¡¡ty

All general obligation (G O.) bonds and notes have been issued by the City on behalf of the Utility.

The G.O. notes require annual principal payments, due December 1, and semiannual interest
payments, due June 1 and December 1. lnterest rates throughout the term of the notes are in a range

between 2.50o/o and 5.50%. The total debt service obligations over the remaining term of the notes

are as follows:

Component Unit - G.O. Capital Loan Notes

Year Ending Principal lnterest

425,000

145,000

155,000

155,000

165,000

575,000

51,266

51,415

49,892

47,878

45,242

179,920

121,595

119,760

1 10,010

99,960

89,610

333,400

1,075,000 141,403

$ 3,640,000 $ r,015,738

The bond resolution provides certain covenants relating to the collection, segregation, and distribution
of revenues from customers; places certain restrictions on the future of borrowing and leasing or
disposition of assets; and requires that minimum insurance coverage be maintained.

The Board of Trustees of the Municipal Electric Utility authorized a loan to be extended to the Utility

under Resolution No. 2759,2840, 2939, 2994, and 3086. The December 31, 2008 outstanding

balance on this loan was $1,478,090, bearing interest as 3.1%. The Board of Trustees of the

Municipal Electric Utility approved a loan to be extended to the Utility under Resolution No. 3497. The

December 31, 2009 outstanding balance on this loan was $375,000, bearing interest at3.1%.

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015-2019

2020-2024 700,000 79,015

$ 2,320,000 $ 504,628

Revenue Gapital Loan Notes - Gommunications Utility

The Series 2009 revenue capital loan notes require annual principal payments, due December 1, and

semiannual interest payments, due June 1 and December 1. lnterest rates throughout the term of the

notes are in a range between 3.0% and 4.3%. The notes are secured by the future net revenues of
the Utility. The bonds mature and bear interest as follows:

Component Unit - Revenue Capital Loan Notes

Year Ending Principal lnterest

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015-2019

2020-2024

325,000

325,000

335,000

345,000

355,000

880,000
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Debt Summary - Communications Ut¡l¡ty

Long-term debt activiÇ for the year ended December 31, 2009 was as follows:

Amounts
Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

General obligation bond:

Series 1998

Series 1999

Series 2002

Series 1999 capital

loan notes

Capital loan notes

Series 2009

Revenue capital loan notes

Series 2009

Less: unamortized

discount on debt

Add: unamortized

335,000 335,000

620,000 620,000

2,020,000 2,020,000

2,320,000

3,640,000

2,320,000 425,000

3,640,000 325,000

$ 3,340,000 $ 5,960,000 $ 3,340,000 $ 5,960,000 $ 750,000

premium on debt (1,608) 46,268 (1,608) 46,268

$ 3,33?,1 1 2_ _q_5, e35, 6?9_ _q_3, 332!e _q_5, e35, 6ie_ _$_?50,999_

F. Long-term Liabilities

Accrued Compensated Absences

Following is a summary of the City's activig for accrued compensated absences for the year-ended
June 30, 2010, and the total liability of the Ci$ as of that date as reported on the government-wide

statement of net assets:

1,280 70,589 1,280 70,589

Balance Amount
End of Payable Within

Balance
Beginning

of Year lncreases Decreases Year One Year

Governmental

activities _q_2,408,e39_ _q_220,9% _9_L19,628- _9_2,480,208_ _q_690,!l_

Business-type

activities $ 465,191 $ 4,024 $ 55,635 $ 4'13,580 $ 112,966

The majority of compensated absences expenditures are paid for out of the General Fund.
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Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB)

The City implemented GASB Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reportinq by Employers for

Postemplyolment Benefits other Than Pensions during the year ended June 30, 2009.

Plan Description - The City operates a single-employer health benefit plan, which provides self-

insured medical/prescription drug benefits for all full-time active and retired employees and their

eligible dependents. Eligible retirees receive health care coverage through the same plan that is

available to active employees. To be eligible for these benefits, participants must be receiving a
pension benefit from the lowa Public Employee Retirement System (IPERS), receiving a Social

Security Disability Benefit, or retired under Code Chapter 411 ol the lowa Code. There were sixteen

retirees participating in the plan as of June 30th. Retirees pay the same premium for the health

benefit plan as active employees, which results in an implicit subsidy and an OPEB liability.

Fundinq Policv - The contribution requirements of plan members are established and may be

amended by the City. The City currently finances the benefit plan on a pay-as-you-go basis.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation - The City's annual OPEB cost is calculated based on

the annual require contribution (ARC) of the City, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with

GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is

projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a period

not to exceed 30 years.

The following table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB cost for the year ended June

30, 2010, the amount actually contributed to the plan and changes in the City's net OPEB obligation:

Annual required contribution $ 50,355

lnterest on net OPEB obligation 7,820
Adjustment to annual required contribution (6,026)

AnnualOPEB Cost 52,149

Net contributions received from retirees 40.628

lncrease in net OPEB obligation 92,777

Net OPEB obligation beginning of year 156.392

Net OPEB obligation end of year $249,169

For calculation of the net OPEB obligation, the actuary has set the transition day as July 1, 2009. The

end of year net OPEB obligation was calculated by the actuary as the cumulative difference between

the actuarially determined funding requirements and the actual contributions for the year ended June

30,2010.

For the year ended June 30, 2010, the City paid $86,761 for retiree health claims. Plan members

eligible for benefits contributed $127,389 or 100% of the premium costs. The net resulted in a

$40,628 contribution received from retirees.

The City's annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net

OPEB obligation as of June 30, 2010 are summarized as follows:
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Year Ended

Annual
OPEB Cost

Percentage of Annual

OPEB Cost
Contributed from City

Net OPEB

Obligation

June 30,2010 $ 52,149 (77.e%) $249,169

Funded Status and Fundinq Proqress - As of July 1, 2009, the most recent actuarial valuation date for
the period July 1, 2009 through June 30, 2010, the actuarial accrued liability was $671,926, with no

actuarial value of assets, resulting in an unfounded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $671,926.
The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $10,707,080 and

the ration of the UAAL to covered payroll was 6.3%. As of June 30, 2010, there were no trust fund
assets.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions - Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the
value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the
future. Examples include assumption about future employments, mortality and the health care cost
trend. Actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual review as actual results are compared
with past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress, presented as required supplementary information in the section following the Notes to
Finance Statements, will present multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan

assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the plan as understood by the
employer and the plan members and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan

members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial
value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

As of the July 1, 2009 actuarial valuation date, the projected unit credit actuarial cost method was
used. The actuarial assumption includes a 5% discount rate based on the City's funding policy. The
projected annual medicaltrend rate is 10%. The ultimate medicaltrend rate is 6%. The medicaltrend
rate is reduced 0.5% each year until reaching the 6% ultimate trend rate.

Mortality rates are from the RP2000 Group Annuity Mortality Table, applied on a gender-specific basis.

Annual retirement and termination probabilities were developed from a combination of the retirement
probabilities from MFPRSI Actuarial Report, the IPERS Actuarial Report, and the City's experience.

Projected claim costs of the health plan are $593.92 per month for retirees less than age 65 and

$424.42 per month for retirees who have attained age 65. The salary increase rate was assumed to
be 4% per year. The UAAL is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll expense on

an open basis over 30 years.
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G. lnterfund Balances

lndividual interfund receivable and payable balances byfund type as of June 30,2010, were stated in

the fund financial statements as follows:

Total

Fund

lnterfund

Receivables

lnterfund

Payables

$ 3,055,563FEMA Fund

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Total

3,055,563

H.

3,055,563 3,055,563

The balances are due to the elimination of reporting negative cash

lnterfund Transactions

The following transfers represent individual fund interfund transfers as stated in the Fund Financial

Statements.

Transfer To Transfer From Am ount

General Fund

Hospital Fund

Street Repair Fund

Debt Service Fund

Bond Fund

Non- major G overnm ental

Street Construction F und
Non-m ajor Governm ental Funds
Sewer Fund
Refuse Fund
lnternal Service Funds

Sewer Fund

Bond Fund
Non-Major G overn mental F unds
Sewer Fund

General Fund
TIF Fund

TIF Fund

General Fund
TIF Fund
Non-m ajor Governm ental Funds
Refuse Fund
Storm Water Fund

Street Construction

FEMA Fund

FEMA Fund
Street Construction F und
Sewer Fund

Bond Fund
Non-m ajor Governm ental Funds

691,425

38,941

33,335
503,677

38,837
575,849

945,000
969,838

1 ,914,838

2,296,084

504,8 1 8

3,448,044
620,597
564,585
36 1 ,925

5,499,969

35,048

220,698

$ 699,803
1 18,930
1 18,930

T 937"003

5,908
97,910

$ 103,818
T--TZ3Tl33t

118,230
137,355

97,1 50

124,370
214,320

Funds

lnternal Service Fund

Sewer Fund

Refuse Fund

Storm Water Fund
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Transfers are used to (1) move revenues from the fund that statute or budget requires to collect them

to the fund that statute or budget requires to expend them, (2) move debt service payments from

proprietary or special revenue funds to the debt service fund as debt service payments come due and,

(3) to move receipts from user fee generated funds to the general fund for certain administrative and

custodial costs in the general fund.

Note 4. Other Notes

Retirement Systems

IPERS

The City contributes to the lowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS) which is a cost-

sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of lowa. IPERS

provides retirement and death benefits, which are established by State statute to plan members and

beneficiaries. IPERS issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and

required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing to IPERS, P.O. Box 9117,

Des Moines, lowa, 50306-9117.

Plan members are required to contribute 4.30o/o of theír annual covered salary and the City is required

to contribute 6.65% of annual covered payroll. Contribution requirements are established by State

statute. The City's contributions to IPERS for the years ended June 30,2010, 2009 and 2008 were

$581,107, $548,622 and $507,597 respectively, equalto the required contributions for each year.

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa

The City contributes to the Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa (the Plan), which is a

cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by a Board of Trustees.

The Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits, which are established by State statute to

plan members and beneficiaries. The Plan issues a publicly available financial report that includes

financial statements and required supplementary information. The report may be obtained by writing

to Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa, 7155 Lake Dr., West Des Moines, lowa

50266.

Plan members are required to contribute 9.40% of earnable compensation and the City's contribution

rate may not be less than 17.00o/o of earnable compensation. Contribution requirements are

established by State statute. The City's contributions to the Plan for the years ended June 30, 2010,

2009, and 2008 were $666,649, $699,619, and $931,069 respectively, which met the required

minimum contribution for each year.

Due To/From Component Unit

Amounts due from the component unit to the general fund at June 30, 2010, were as follows:

Due from

Component Unit:

Electric utility $ 774,990

This amount differs from the amount reported as due to primary government since the Electric Utility

component unit has a calendar year end of December 3l, 2009.

A.

B.
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G. Related Par$ Transactions

During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2003, the Black Hawk County Solid Waste Management

Commission, which is a jointly governed organization, passed a resolution for annual distributions of

its excess funds. The prorated share for the City of Cedar Falls is estimated at $564,721 to be

received each year for the next fifteen years. The payments received in fiscal years ended June 30,

2003,2004,2005, 2006, 2007,2008,2009 and 2010 have been recorded in the Refuse Fund as other

operating revenue.

Risk Management

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of

assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters for which the government

has established various funds to account for and finance its uninsured risks of loss.

The City has established a Health lnsurance Reserve Fund for insuring benefits provided to City

employees and covered dependents, which is included in the internal service fund type. Health

benefits were self-insured up to a specific stop loss amount of $85,000 and an aggregate stop loss of

approximately $2,316,011 for 2010. Coverage from a private insurance company is maintained for

losses in excess of the stop loss amounts. All claims handling procedures are performed by a third-

party claims administrator. lncurred but not reported claims have been accrued as a liabiliÇ based

upon the claims administrator's estimate.

All funds of the City participate in the program and make payments to the Health lnsurance Reserve

Fund based on actuarial estimates of the amounts needed to pay prior-year and current-year claims.

The City has also established reserve funds for insuring workers' compensation, liabiliÇ, and long-

term disability claims which are included in the general fund type. Liability benefits were self-insured

up to a specific stop loss amount of $100,000 and an aggregate stop loss amount of $260,000. Long-

term disability benefits are self funded for the first six months, and the maximum benefit per individual

is $18,000. Workers' compensation benefits were self-insured up to an aggregate stop loss amount

of $350,000 with no specific stop loss amount. Coverage from private insurers is maintained for

losses in excess of the stop loss amounts. An independent claims administrator performs all claims

handling procedures. Settled claims for the above funds have not exceeded commercial coverage in

any of the last three fiscal years.

Liabilities of the fund are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of the

loss can be reasonably estimated. Liabilities include an amount for claims that have been incurred

but not reported (lBNRs). The result of the process to estimate the claims liability is not an exact

amount as it depends on many complex factors, such as inflation, changes in legal doctrines, and

damage awards. Accordingly, claims are reevaluated periodically to consider the effects of inflation,

recent claim settlement trends (including frequency and amount of pay-outs), and other economic and

social factors. The estimate of the claims liability also includes amounts for incremental claim

adjustment expenses related to specific claims and other claim adjustment expenses regardless of

whether allocated to specific claims.

D.
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Changes in reported liabilities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2010, are summarized as

follows:

Risk Management Fund

Health Workers'

lnsurance Compensatíon

Reserve Fund Reserve

Liability

Reserve

Long-Term
Disability

Reserve Total

Claim liabilities

June 30, 2008

Claims and changes

in estimates during

fiscal year 2009

Claim paynents

Claim liabilities

June 30, 2009

Claims and changes

in estimates during

fiscal year 2010

Claim payments

Claim liabilities

June 30, 2010

262,483 $ 1 38,1 04 $ 61,000 $ 461,587

1,696,014

(1,703,041)
253,219

(293,665)

(61,000) 1,888,233

(1,ee6,706)

255,456

2,437,723
(2,356,993)

297,026
(211,202)

97,658 $ 353,114

2,734,749

(2,568,195)

336,18ô $ 183,482 $ 519,668

E. Commitments and Contingencies

Legal counsel has reported that as of June 30, 2010, there were claims and losses that are on file

against the City. The City has the authority to levy additional taxes outside the regular limit to fund any

uninsured judgment against the City. However, it is estimated that all of these claims and losses will

be covered by insurance when exceeding stop loss limits, and the amounts prior to reaching these

limits would not materially affect future financial statements of the City.

New Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Standards

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued one statement not yet

implemented by the City of Cedar Falls. The statement, which might impact the City of Cedar Falls, is

as follows:

Statement No. 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions issued February

2009, will be effective for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2011. This statement establishes new

standards for fund balance classifications based primarily on the extent to which a government is

bound to observe constraints imposed upon the use of the resources reported in governmental funds.

The City's management has not yet determined the effect this statement will have on the City's

financial statements.

F.
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Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa

Budgetary Gomparison Schedule - Function Budget
For the Year Ended June 30' 2010

Budgeted Amounts

Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other City taxes
Licenses and permits
Use of money and property

lntergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety
Public works
Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government

Debt service
Capital projects
Business-type

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Proceeds from long-term debt
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other financing sources

over (under) expenditures and other financing uses

Fund balances, beginning

Fund balances, ending

See notes to the required supplementary information.

$ 62,865,510 $ 76,914,310

Original

$ 22,071,366
5,011,411

851,200
2,220,890

19,708,040
9,901,350
3,101,253

Final

$ 22,071,366
5,011,411

851,200
2,220,890

28,167,590
10,068,500
8,523,353

$ 8,119,220
12,595,060

22,250
6,599,410
2,580,690
4,595,820
3,999,990

17,283,400
10,834,980

$ 8,284,420
12,677,060

53,250
6,702,310
2,600,690
4,624,520

10,904,990
28,713,400
12,O22,980

$ 66,630,820

$ (3,765,310)

$ 5,753,300
12,418,230

(12,418,230)

$ 86,583,620

$ (9,669,310)

$ 10,713,300
12,418,230

(12,418,230)

$ 5,753,300

$ 1,987,990

59,407,268

$ 10,713,300

$ 1,043,990

59,407,268

$ 61,395,258
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Actual
Amounts

21,998,720
5,193,710
1,107,536
2,114,O05

13,776,227
10,108,142
2,317,140

Variance with
Final Budget -

Positive
(Negative)

$ (72,646)
192,299
256,336

(106,885)
(14,391,363)

39,642
(6,206,213)

56,615,480 $ (20,299,930)

7,838,700
8,774,238

49,364
5,925,669
2,287,195
4,517,941

10,357,614
17,643,491
8,076,086

$ 445,720
3,902,822

4,886
776,641
313,495
106,579
547,376

11,069,909
3,946,894

65,469,298 $ 21,114,322

$ (8,853,818)

$ 8,773,438
13,998,834

(13,998,834)

(1,939,862)
1,580,604

(1,590,604)

815,492

8.773.438 $ (1,939,862)

(80,380)

64,301,362

(1,124,370)

4,894,094

64,220,982 3,769,724
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Notes to Required Supplementary lnformation - Budgetary Reporting
For the Year ended June 30, 2010

Note A - Budgetary Reporting

The budgetary comparison is presented as Required Supplementary lnformation in
accordance with Government Accounting Statement No. 41 for governments with significant
budgetary perspective differences resulting from not being able to present budgetary
comparisons for the General Fund and each major Special Revenue Fund.

ln accordance with the Code of lowa, the City Council annually adopts a budget on the cash
basis plus recorded accounts payable following required public notice and hearing for all
funds. The annual budget may be amended during the year utilizing similar statutorily
prescribed procedures. Encumbrances are not recognized on the cash basis budget and
appropriations lapse at year end.

Formal and legal budgetary control is based upon 9 major classes of disbursements known
as functions, not by fund or fund type. These 9 functions are: public safety, public works,
health and social services, culture and recreation, community and economíc development,
general government, debt service, capital projects, and business-type activities. Function
disbursements required to be budgeted include disbursements for the General Fund, Special
Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund, Capital Project Funds, and Enterprise Funds. Although
the budget document presents function disbursements by fund, the legal level of control is at
the aggregated function level, not by fund. During the year, one budget amendment
increased budgeted disbursements by $19,952,800. These budget amendments are
reflected in the final budget amounts.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
Program Budget

Notes to RSI

Note B - Explanation of Differences between Budgetary Sources and Uses of
funds and GAAP Revenues and Expenditures for the GAAP General
Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds

Sources

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total revenues" from the budgetary
comparison schedule - function budget

Adjustments:
The City budgets for all receipts on the cash basis, rather than

the modified accrual or accrual basis

Total revenues for the function budget on a GAAP basis of
accounting

Reclassifications:
The City reports sources of funds in the function budget as

revenues in other major and nonmajor funds for GAAP repofting:
Debt Service Fund
FEMA Fund
Bond capital projects Fund
Nonmajor governmental GAAP funds
Business-type enterprise funds

Total revenues for general fund and major special revenue funds

Total revenues as reported on the statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances - governmentalfunds:

General Fund
Hospital Fund
TIF Fund
Street Repair Fund
Street Construction Fund

Total revenues for general fund and major special revenue funds

Function
Budget

$ 56,615,480

(359,473)

$ 56,256,007

(1,643,625)
(6,534,745)

(330,998)
(4,497,822\
(7,989,853)

$ 35,258,964

$ 19,861,800
771,309

6,754,287
4,697,725
3,173,844
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Uses

Actual amounts (budgetary basis) "total expenditures" from the budgetary

comparison schedule - function budget

Adjustments
The City budgets for expenditures on the cash basis, rather than on the

modified accrual or accrual basis on all items except payments to suppliers

The city does not budget for depreciation

Total uses for the function budget on a GAAP basis of accounting

Reclassifications:
The City reports uses of funds in the function budget as expenditures in

other major and nonmajor funds for GAAP reporting:
Debt Service Fund
FEMA Fund
Bond capital projects Fund
Nonmajor governmental GAAP funds
Business-type enterprise funds

Total expenditures for general fund and major special revenue funds

Total expenditures as reported on the statement of revenues, expenditures,

and changes in fund balances - governmentalfunds:
General Fund
Hospital Fund
TIF Fund
Street Repair Fund
Street Construction Fund

Total expenditures for general fund and major special revenue funds

Function
Budget

$ 65,469,298

(9,534,276)

$ 55,935,022

(3,615,925)
(7,168,269)
(5,740,365)
(6,694,058)
(6,1 1 1,091)

$ 26,605,314

$ 19,238,861
72,554

4,935,506
2,358,393

$ 26,605,314
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Actuarial
Valuation

Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Schedule of Funding Progress for the
Cedar Falls Health Plan

June 30, 2010

Actuarial Unfunded
Accrued AAL Funded Govered

Liability (AAL) (UAAL) Ratio Payroll

UAAL As a
Percentage
of Govered

Payroll

July 1,2007

July 1, 2009

1,041,000 1 ,041 ,000 0.0o/o 10,506,285

671,926 671,926 0.0% 10,707,080

9.9%

6.3o/o
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010
(Page 1 ot 2l

Community
Development

Fund

Housing
Assistance

Fund

Recreation
& Public

Safety Fund

$ 1,481,603$ 82,958 844,341
ASSETS
Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:

Property taxes
Other city taxes
Accrued interest
Special assessment
Other

Due from other funds
Due from other governments
lnventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserved for:

Employee retirement sYstem
lnventories

Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:

Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities and fund balances

41,971

1,764

_9_l%@_

$ 19,337
5,020

17,930
g 42,287

844.341 __$__u99,392_

47
4,788

.'u.,--

$ 4,835 $ 1,612

--$
$

82,642 839,506 1,481,755

g 82,642 $ 839,506

$ 124,929 $ 844,341

$ 1,481,755

_$__1,483¡6i_
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Soecial Revenue

Cable
Television

Cultural
Services

Parking
Fund

Police
Retirement

Fire
Retirement

Visitor &
Tourism

$ 1,233,004

1,919

118,665

--

$ 1,353,588

6,336
,,rr1_

$ 138,455 $ 867,891 $ 3,035,633 $ 2,535,252 $ 455,550$ 2,535,252

222,287

8,036

277,644 222,287

226 1,40;_-__ 11,216 I o;- "'[tl 
-

_$_l_g8,gg1_ _s 871,67!_ _$__A,324,t99_ _þ_2:765,57þ_ _$___554qË_

-: 
$ 4,943

o,uu:_
$-

275,119

$ 3,049,374-

3,100

220,123

33,736
7,343

72.741

$ 14,058

1,339,530

$ 9,273 g 275,119 $ 223,223 113,820

138,681

$
2,376

860,025_

s 2,542,352
25,726

415,139

$ 1,339,530 $ 138,681 $ 862,401

lÆ,sqq_ _$_1_38,681_ _fi 871,67!_

$ 3,049,374 $ 2,542,352 $ 440,865

$ 3,324,493 _$__2,76!,575_ _$ 554,685

(continued)
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City of Gedar Falls, lowa

Gombining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

June 30, 2010
(Page 2 ot 2l

Special Revenue
Community
Center &

Sr Services

Greenwood
Perpetual

Care

Fairview
Perpetual

Care

Hillside
Perpetual

Care

ASSETS
Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts.

Property taxes
Other city taxes
Accrued interest
Special assessment
Other

Due from other funds
Due from other governments
lnventories

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Reserued for:

Employee retirement system
lnventories

Unreserved, undesignated, reported in:
Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities and fund balances

3,731 $ 183,450 $ 101,766 $ 32,524

__$_9J91_ l_199,4q9_ _$jq1,769_ _9__32,5%_

$ 3,731 $
1,373

--$

$ 5,104 $

$
--$

$

(1,373) 183,450 101,766 32,524__

$ (1,373) $ 183,450

_$_9lgl_ _$_89,45q_ _$_qlqq_ _$ 32,524
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Washington
Park

Renovation

$ 30,200

Capital
lmprovemenl

Economic
Development

Capital

$ 2,195,780

(continued)

Total

$ 19,198,181

Capital Projectr

49

5,976,043

10,æ;

--

5,395

3,055,563

499,931
72,741
41,016

8,720
118,665

3,055,563
41,971
28.102

_$_qq,24e_ _$_9,ee5,q99_ _$__l¿56139_ _S__?9p91,89q_

$ $ 76,197

30,24g
$ 30,249

_$_go21g_

5,918,902
$ 5,918,902

_$__5,995,æ9_

4,188

5,252,550
$ 5,252,550

_$ 5,256/9q_

$ 144,507
30,576

594,633
$ 769,716

$ 5,591,726
28j02

5,473,645
11,201,701

g 22,295,174

$ 23,064,890

$ 67,477

8,720

4,188 
_

:: 
$$
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Gombining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

(Page 1 oÍ 2l

Community
Development

Fund

Housing
Assistance

Fund

Recreation
& Public

Safety Fund

Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other city taxes
Use of money and property
lntergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government

Capital projects

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning
lncrease (decrease) in reserve for inventories

Fund balances, ending

$ 266,967 $ 935,420 $ 226,888

266,967

$

2,198
928,219__

5,003

12,85;

190,499
22,783

747

n--
285,067

$--

1,180,198

$ 53,907

88,086

$ 285,067 $ 1,180,198

$ (18,100) $ (244,778\

$ 141,993

$ 84,895

s 277,482

$ (18,100)
100,742

$-
$ (244,778)

1,084,284

277.482

$ 362,377
1 ,1 19,378

_9___82,642 _$___839,5q9_ _$__1_,$1,755_
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Cable
Television

Cultural
Services

Parking
Fund

Police
Retirement

Fire
Retirement

Visitor &
Tourism

ß,77;

461,202

4,ß;

1,976

9,371

9,81;

34,471
183,743__

233,436

135,331

182,199

124,506
274,822

14,650

$

479,712 $ 11,347 $ 228,025 $ 368,767 $ 306,705 $ 295,253

293,407

$
199,530

362,788__ 346,937_

328,474

g 293,407 $ 199,530 $ 362,788 346,937 $ 328,474

$ 186,305 $ 11,347 $ 28,495 $ 5,979 $ (40,232) $ (33,221)

(41,910)
$ 14,724

(13,050) --$-.$
49,469

(16,e67)

$ 144,395 $ 11,347 $ 30,169 $ 5,979
3,043,3951,195,135_ 127,334 931,254

978

$ (40,232)
2,582,584__

$ 32,502

(71e)
436,320

5,264

Å1999É9q_ _$_1_98,q91_ _$__g6e49i_ _$_9,04e,34- 5iJ,542,352- 440.865
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

(Page 2 ot 2l

Special Revenue
Community

Center &
Sr Services

Greenwood
Perpetual

Care

Fairview Hillside
Perpetual Perpetual

Care Care

Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other city taxes
Use of money and property
lntergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures.
Current:

Public safety
Public works
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government

Capital projects

Total expenditures

Excess (defìciency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances, beginning
Increase (decrease) in reserve for inventories

Fund balances, ending

$ 36,190 $ 5,304 $ 3,802 $ 2,266

18,51;

4,616

13,05;

5,304 3,802

n:-

2,266:

$

64,580

n-- $--

64,580

$ (28,390) $ 5,304 $ 3,802 $ 2,266

$ 47,407 $
(11,928)

$-
:-$

$ 35,479

$ 7,089
(8,462)

$ 3,802 $ 2,266$ 5,304
178,146

_q_0_,9æI _$__1_q3,459_ $lqJqq_ _g 32,524_
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Washington
Park

Renovation
Capital

lmprovements

Economic
Development

Capital

(continued)

Total

Capital Proiects

345 gg,27;
192,557__

214,439

ß3,47;
375,000_

256,085

$ 415,635
274,822
617,853

1,762,743
702,160
206,526
518,083

$ 345 $ 506,271 824,560 $ 4,497,822

$$

795,104 2,695,980

$ 763,632
199,530
481J40

1,465,265
293,407

3,491,084

$-

$ 345 $ (288,833)

$ 1,706,151
(1,275,684)

795.104 $ 2,695,980 $ 6,694,058

$ (2,196,236)

$ 5,499,969
(1,359,539)

$ (1,871,420)

$ 3,404,736__

$-
$ 345

$ 430,467

$ 141,634
5,777,268

$ 3,404,736 4,140,430

$ 1,533,316
3,719,234

$ 1,944,194
20,344,738

6,242

_$ 30219_ __$_!,e18,99?_ _$__529?,559_ s_-22,2e5J74-
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Combining Statement of Net Assets
lnternal Service Funds

June 30, 2010

Health Health lnsurance
lnsurance Severance Payroll

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash
Receivables, net of allowance
for uncollectible amounts:

Accrued interest
Other

lnventories
Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets:

Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Accumulated depreciation

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences due
within one year

Noncurrent liabilities:
Compensated absences after

one year
Total liabilities

NET ASSETS
lnvested in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net assets

$ 6,062,047

9,567

$ 6,111,342

$ 6,111,342

5,045
336,186

$ 341,231

5.770.111

_$ 5,770,111

26,789 $ 2,307,107

$

26,789 $ 2,311,208

$--
$ 26,789

26,789

2,311,208

575

$
2,308,633

_$__2,308,639_

$
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Risk
Management

Data
Processing

Vehicle
Maintenance Total

$ 3,708,141

$ 3,414,944

5,493
287,704__

898,857

1,463

932,257

1,378
174

$ 90,302
6,074,285

(3,393,616)
$ 2,770,971

$ 13,642,001

22,002
327,606
125,226

$ 14,116,835

$ 90,302
7,238,827

(4,197,415\
g 3,131,714
$ 17,248,549

157,798
547,892

29,589

39.496
$ 774,775

$ 3,131,714
13,342,060

_fi 16,473,774_

2.835 122,391
903.155 $ 1,056,200

$
1,164,542
(803,799)

$ 360,743
$ 1,263,898 $ 3,827,171

Q

$ 3Jo8J41

21,466
183,482

74,466
14,433

20,634

27,457
13,791

8,955

11.675 27.821
204.948 $ 121,208 78,024

360,743
781,947

$ 2,770,971
3.503,193 978,176

_$ 3,503,193_ _$_1,14¿q99_ $ 3,749j47
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses,

and Changes in Fund Net Assets
lnternal Seruice Funds

For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

Health Health lnsurance
lnsurance Severance Payroll

Operating revenues:
Charges for se¡vices
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Personal services
Contractual services
Supplies and equipment
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Use of money and property
Loss on disposal of equipment

Nonoperating revenues (expenses)

lncome (loss) before transfers

Transfers in

Transfers out

Transfers, net

Change in net assets

Net assets, beginning

Net assets, ending

$ 2,711,672
206,001

g 2,917,673

$
2,564,404__

$ 27,750 $ 256,910

271,365__

$ 2,564,404

$ 353,269

$ 70,503

$ 27,750

$--

$

$ 271,365

$ .(14,455)

$ 29,340

$ 423,772 $*
$ 29,340

$ 14,885

70.503

$ 423,772

5,346,339

$ 14,885

2,293,748

$ 5,770,111 $ 2,308,633
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Risk
Management

$ 684,414
330,716

Data
Processing

$ 683,907
10,919

Vehicle
Maintenance Total

$ 1,820,910
65,142

$ 6,185,563
612,778

$ 1,015,130

g45,96;

$ 694,826

$ 317,233
241,125
171,389
113,067

278,627
159,057
753,963
323,142

$ 867,225
3,938,298

925,352
436,209

$ 1,886,052 $ 6,798,341

945,962

$ 69,168

$ 842,814

$ (147,988)

$ 1,514,789

$ 371,263

$ 6,167,084

$ 631,257

10,940
(475)

$ 9,355
(164,266)

157,436
(164,741)

$ 37,298

$ 106,466

(94,730)

$ (137,523)

10.465 $ (154,91 1) $ (7,305)

$ 216,352 $ 623,952

35,048
(119,590)

35,048
(214,320)

$ (94,730)

$ 11,736

3,491,457

$ (137,523)

1,280,213

$ 131,810 $ 444,680

3,617,337 16,029,094

$ 3,503,193 $ 1,142,690 $ 3,749,147

--

$ 16,473,774
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Combining Statement of Cash Flows

lnternal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Receipts from interfund services
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Transfers from other funds
Transfers to other funds

Net cash used for financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING
ACTIVITIES
Net acquisition of property and equipment

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
lnterest received on investments

Net increase (decrease) in cash

CASH BALANCES, Beginning
CASH BALANCES, Ending

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided

by (used for) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash

provided by (used for) operating activities:
Depreciation
Change in assets and liabilities:

(lncrease) decrease in:

Other receivables
lnventories

lncrease (decrease) in accounts payable, accrued and

other liabilities
Net cash provided by (used for) operating activities

-- (2,856)

$ 435,956 $ 24,894

:: 
$

Health Health lnsurance
lnsurance Severance

$ 2,711,672 $
(2,275,716)

103.936 $

$ 539,892

5.522.155

$ 24,894

1,895

$ 6,062,047 $ 26.789

353,269 $

80,859 24.894
435.956 $ 24,894
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Payroll

$ 256,910

(273,2501

$ (16,340)

Risk
Management

$ 684,414
(814,157)

8 (29,743\

$
(94,730)

$ (94,730)

Data
Processing

$ 683,907
(400,867)
(303,918)

$ (20,878)

Vehicle
Maintenance Total

$ 35,048
(119,590)

$ 1,820,910
(882,297)
(281,682\

$ 656,931

$ 6,185,563
(4,373,037)

(861,706)

$ 950,820

$ 35,048
(214,320\

$ (179,272\$ -- $ (84,542)

45.114 60.748

$ (49,239) $ (152,318)

$ 16,600 $ 13,054

$ (53,517) $ 433,125

$ (201,557)

$ 239,452

$ 809,443

12,832,558
$ 13,642,001

$ 28,774 $ (163,725)

3,578,6692,278,333 952.374 499,132
g 2,307,107-_ s_3A14W_ j 898,857 932.257

(14,455)

(1,885)

_$_0_6319I

69,168

(287,704_l_

$ (147,988)

113,067

371,263

323,142

16,559
(25,087)

(28,946)

_$_-656,931_

631,257

436,209

(269,317)
(25,868)

178,539
950.820

88.793

(781)

14,824

_$_0_2eJ19t _$ (20,879I
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Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Gomparative Schedules by Source*

June 30, 2010 and 2009

2010

Governmental fund capital assets:

Land

Land improvements

Buildings

Machinery and equipment

lnfrastructure

Construction in progress

Total governmental funds capital assets

Investments in governmental funds capital assets by source:

General fund

Special revenue funds

Capital projects funds

lnternal service

Donations

Total governmental funds capital assets

$ 20,363,319

12,397,788

26,881,545

8,046,557

139,355,533

10,144,071

$ 217,188,813

$ 21,465,051

36,612,353

128,477,479

225,195

30,408,739

g 217 ,188,813

2009

$ 15,290,332

12,108,013

26,827,853

7,842,503

130,473,896

10,383,212

$ 202,925,809

$ 21,633,292

34,152,577

116,988,469

10,875

30,140,596

$ 202,925,809

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.

Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the

above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as

governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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City of Gedar Falls, lowa

Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds
Schedule by Function and Activity *

June 30, 2010

Function and Activity Land

Land
lmprovements

1,829,059

69,599

10,171,584

327,546

Buildings

$ 1,024,832

1,513,123

5,873,537

12,O95,244

2,365,425

4,009,384

Publíc Safety

Public Works

Health & Social Services

Culture and Recreation

Community and Economic Development

General Government

$ 12,500

290,326

151,494

2,628,942

17,226,156

53,901

$ 20,363,319 $ 12,397,788 $ 26,981,545

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.

Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the

above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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Machinery
and

Equipment

$ 964,154

3,345,566

2,625,899

130,906

980,032

lnfrastructure

Construction
in

Progress

9,524,420

524,879

935,494

159,278

Total

$ 2,001,486

149,112,262

6,094,630

33,792,313

20,985,527

5,202,595

133,609,768

5,745,765

$ 8,046,557 $ 139,355,533 $ 10,144,071 $ 217,188,813
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity *

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2010

Governmental
Funds Capital

Assets
July 1, 2009

$ 1,944,789

141,399,828

6,025,031

33,463,219

15,057,913

5,035,029

Governmental
Funds Capital

Assets
Additions Deletions June 30. 2010

Public Safety

Public Works

Health & Social Services

Culture and Recreation

Community and

Economic Development

General Government

$ 222,166

13,998,292

69,599

771,112

5,927,614

170,993

$ 165,469

6,285,858

442,018

3,317

$ 2,001,486

149,112,262

6,094,630

33,792,313

20,985,527

5,202,595

$ 202,925,809 $ 21.159,666 $ 6,896,662 $ 217,188,813

This schedule presents only the capital asset balances related to governmental funds.
Accordingly, the capital assets reported in internal service funds are excluded from the
above amounts. Generally, the capital assets of internal service funds are included as
governmental activities in the statement of net assets.
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Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Statistical Section

This part of the City statistical's comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed information

as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements, note disclosures, and

required supplementary information says about the city's overall financial health.

Contents Page

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the city's

financial performance and well-being have changed over time' 101

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the city's most significant

local revenue source, the property tax. 111

Debt Gapacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the city's

current levels of outstanding debt and the city's ability to issue additional debt in the future 1 19

Demographic and Economic lnformation
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand

the environment within which the city's financial activities take place 131

Operating lnformation
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand

how the information in the city's financial report relates to the services the city provides

and the activities it performs. 136

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the

comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. The city implemented GASB

Statement 34 in 2003: therefore the first four tables include information beginning in that year.
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Net Assets by Gomponent

Last Eight FiscalYears
(Accrual basis of accounting)

FiscalYear

2003 2005

Governmental activities
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total governmental activities net assets

Business-type activities
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total business-type activities net assets

Primary government
lnvested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Total primary government net assets $ 166,363,467 $ 178,672,161 $ 189,661,547

$ 82,419,682
14,924,796
37,157 ,458

$ 94,618,419
15,944,416
34,315,853

$ 100,850,333
16,688,108
36,568,953

$ 134,501,936

$ 24,686,106
609,000

6,566,425

$ 144,878,688

$ 26,644,501
808,500

6,340,472

$ 154,107,394

$ 29,566,202
808,500

6,179,451

$ 31,861,531

$ 107,105,788
15,533,796
43,723,883

_$_q9,793,473-

g 121,262,920
16,752,916
40,656,325

$ 35,554,153

$ 129,416,535
17,496,608
42,748,404
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FiscalYear

2010

$ 108,359,511
17,167,913
37,686,372

$ 113,859,357 $ 118,688,310
18,571,430 20,491,013
42,994,411 45,657,412

$ 123,367,386 $ 131 ,237,132
21,421,340 22,341,338
48,697,813 52,747,528

_q_1_63,213199_

$ 30,991,450
908,500

6,285,467

$ 175,425,198 $ 184,836,735 $ 193,486,539

$ 36,487,852 $ 41,521,531 $ 44,414,522
808,500 449,500 449,500

5,569,366 4,018,315 4,522,038

$ 42,865,718 $ 45,989,346

_q_206,325,999_

$ 46,273,076
9,500

4,987,575

_q_38,995,417_

$ 139,350,961
17,976,413
43,971,839

$ 150,347,209
19,379,930
48,563,777

$ 160,209,841
20,940,513
49,675,727

_$_4e386,06q_

$ 167,781,908
21,870,840
53,219,851

$ 51,170,151

$ 177,510,2O8
22,350,838
57,635,103

$ 201 ,299,213 $ 218,290,916 $ 230,826,081 $ 242,872,599 $ 257,496,149
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Changes in Net Assets
Last Eight FiscalYears

(Accrual basis of accounting)
(Page 1 of2l

FiscalYear

2003 2004 2005

Expenses
Governmental activities:

Public safeÇ
Public works
Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic development
General government
Debt service
Capitalprojects

Total governmental activities expenses

Business-type activities:
Sewer
Refuse
Storm Water

Total business-type activities expenses

Total primary government expenses

Program Revenues
Governmental activities:

Charges for services:
Public SafetY
Public Works
Culture and Recreation
General Government

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total govern mental activities prog ram reven ues

Business-type activities:
Charges for services:

Sewer
Refuse
Storm Water

Capital grants and contributions: sewer and storm water
Total business-type activities program revenues

Total primary government program revenues

Net (Expense)/Revenues
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government net expense

$ 5,485,120
7,554,513

367,638
4,388,937
2,461,419
3,164,667
1,267,811

174,271
24,864,376

2,722,667
1,668,192

$ 6,378,906
8,083,107

177,236
4,788,464
2,641,914
3,309,062
1,046,548

119,579
26,544,816

2,656,015
1,699,546_

$ 6,786,083
8,121,486

261,476
5,350,058
3,345,487
3,751,183

960,961

28,576,734

2,777,820
2,176,174

4,390,859

$ 29,255,235

4,355,561

_$__qg,eo0,9zz_

4,953,994

$__93,5392q_

$ 210,770
79,357

1,344,018
1,019,454
2,077,794

993,846
5,725,239

3,638,914
2,097,720

8,720
5,?4$54

$ 561,788
311,932

1,356,978
1,147,836
2,207,574
4,210,176
9,796,284

3,747,185
2,471,886

11,687
6,230,?58

$ 602,800
209,424

1,550,008
1,242,703
3,143,285
2,759,995
9,508,215

3,777,236
2,460,525

820,264

- 2058-025

_$__11,470,993_ S__163¿7 p42_ _$j_q999¿19_

(19,139,137) (16,748,532) (19,068,519)
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FiscalYear

2006

$ 6,920,986
9,291,307

325,479
5,911,073
4,353,658
3,972,891

968,298

3,212,254
1,797,655 

_

5,009,909

$ 6,602,108
9,390,405

147,007
5,894,494
4,341,611
3,918,550

930,278

$ 8,065,013
9,696,327

234,124
6,736,108
4,346,385
4,244,545

831,315

$ 7,192,846
13,938,703

310,365
6,836,437
5,677,705
4,619,221

754,989_

$ 7,725,740
10,699,831

164,836
6,864,804
7,019,195
4,797,762

741,933

2007 2008 2009 2010

31,743,692 31,224,453

3,359,111
2,011,573

61 9,1 92
5,989,876

34,153,817

3,009,639
2,142,679

652,999
5,805,317

39,330,266

3,178,354
2,355,999

620,460
6,154,813

38,014,101

3,187,378
2,410,813

732,218
6,330,409

$ 538,398
259,569

2,184,620
1,191,151
2,153,921
7,183,972

13,511,631

3,999,239
3,148,295

780,837
983,243

8,911,614

$ 597,348
240,997

2,170,036
1,587,244
1,606,798
8,928,178

15,130,601

4,015,527
3,186,384

787,942
128,795

8,118,648

$ 18,372,586 $ 21,916,852 $ 18,765,132 $ 22,423,245 S__23,249,249_

(21,363,214\ (19,801,609) (23,112,478) (25,818,635) (22,883,500)

2,982,199 4,504,132 1,918,47ç. 
= ,=?,1?q,991, ÆFlîE; fOm W_ $ (21Je4,0qà _U?9,061,831t $-91,0e5291I

$ 36,753,601 g 37,214,329 $ 39,959,134 $ 45,485,079 $ 44,344,510
+--.:-

$ 715,066
344,199

1,841,570
1,323,816
2,533,024
3,622,803

10,380,478

3,862,562
2,576,395

1 ,553,151-@

$ 567,948
282,146

2,024,082
1,165,048
2,461,032
4,922,588

11,422,844

3,794,631
2,746,393

731,844
3,221,140

10,494,008

s 534,722
249,903

2,028,869
1,466,523
2,365,608
4.395,714

11,041,339

3,775,728
2,833,449

780,666
333,950

7.723.793
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Changes in Net Assets
Last Eight FiscalYears

(Accrual basis of accounting)
(Page 2 oÍ 2l

General Revenues and Other Changes in Net Assets
Governmental activities:

General revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other city taxes
Use of money and ProPertY
lntergovernmental
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Gain on sale of assets
Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Transfers
Total governmental activities

Business-type activities:
General revenues:

Property taxes and assessments
Use of money and ProPertY

Transfers
Total business-tYPe activities

Total primary government

Change in Net Assets
Governmental activities
Business-type activities

Total primary government

FiscalYear

2003 2005

$ 12,807,403 $ 14,110,761 $ 16,034,121

3,893,997 4j69362 4,349,790
3,031 ,121 2,618,556 1,874,497
4,053,397 3,785,710 3,809,479

527,966
1,156,311 946,121 207,661

(56,459) 72,034 65,215
1,500,000 1,400,000 1,400,000
(371,539) (20,070) 556,462

26,542,152 27,082,474 28,297,225

10,396 54,475 149

170,254 116,420 212,962
371,589 20,070 (556,462)

552,239 190,965 (343,351)

s 27.094.391 $ 27,273,439 $ 27,953,874:-:

$ 7,403,015 $ 10,333,942 $ 9,228,706
1,906,734 2,066,162 1,760,680

S---93æ,2¿g $'!2,490,44_ $ 10,e8e,386
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(continued)

FiscalYear

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

$ 17,163,242
4,709,758
2,425,140
3,527,541

491,847

1,400,00o
752,088

30,469,616

301,15;

$ 18,931,378
4,582,479
2,924,080
3,551,695

474,249

r,400,00;
1 49,1 30

32,013,01 1

1,287
424,012

$ 19,468,413
5,060,324
2,868,337
3,728,669

850,716

1,609
351,099
852,444

$ 20,994,332
5,308,296
2,421,181
3,693,255

965,194

1,961
224,133
413,819

$ 22,066,237
5,022,500
1,640,456
4,258,253

1,127,964

1,748
76,663

(82,559)
(4,148)

1 ,400,000 1,500,000 1,524,990
(852,4441 (413,819) 82,559

32,524,015 34,468,439 35,722,959

(752,088) (149,130)
(450,935) 276J69

_q__q9g9,6ql _q__q?¿ggJ_qg_

1,205,152 639,913

þ__ælnf67_ _$_95,108É!?_ 9_35¡9,8!_

$ 9,106,402 $ 12,211,402 $ 9,411,537 $ 8,649,804 $ 12,839,459
2,531,264 4,780,301 3,123,628 3,396,714 1,784,091

_$_1_1_,q92,69q_ $_1q99.1..,lq9_ _$_!,59U_q!_ g_1_2,046,q9_ $l1e3É!9-
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,

Last Eight FiscalYears
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

FiscalYear

General Fund
Reserved
Unreserved

Total generalfund

All Other Governmental Funds
Reserved
Designated for long-term debt
Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue funds
Capital projects funds

2003 2004 2005

$ 95,374 $ 78,299 $ 86,234
3,874,706 4,202,156 4,759,091

$ 3,970,080 $ 4,280,455 $ 4,845,325:--

$ 6,049,806 $ 6,095,148 $ 6,099,299
1,050,000

21,941,288 24,902,596 25,907,185
11,544,108 12,215,078 13,537,485

Total all other governmental funds $ 40,585,202 $ 43,212,822 -$ 45,543'969-
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FiscalYear

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

$ 119,589
5,462,495

$ 147,220
5,350,005

$ 131,466
5,262,086

$ 132,803
5,286,401

$ 178,147
5,150,947

$ 5,582,084 $ 5,497,225 $ 5,393,552 $ 5.419,204 $ 5,329,094

$ 5,922,020__

27,560,891
12,165,289

$ 5,997,646_

29,823,558
12,482,706

$ 6,024,776__

32,615,782
13,842,259

$ 5,967,680_

34,366,788
11,886,774

$ 5,954,591_

36,329,267
12,266,794

$ 45,648,200 $ 48,303,910 $ 52,482,817 $ 52,221,242 $ 54,550,652
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Gity of Cedar Falls, lowa
Ghanges in Fund Balances, Governmental Funds,

Last Eight FiscalYears
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

2003 2004 2005

Revenues:
Property taxes and assessments
Other city taxes
Licenses and permits
Use of money and property
lntergovernmental
Charges for seruices
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous
Utility contribution in lieu of taxes

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety
Public works
Health and social services
Culture and recreation
Community and economic

development
General government

Debt service
Principal
lnterest

Capital projects
Total expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

lssuance of long{erm debt
Premium on long-term debt
lssuance of refunding debt
Discount on long{erm debt
Land contract
Payments on refunding bonds
Transfers in

Transfers out
Total other financing sources

(uses)

Net change in fund balances

Debt service as a percentage of
noncapital expenditures

$ 12,807,404
3,893,996

724,041
3,031,124
7,125,038
1,929,559

527,965
473,127

1,500,000

$ 32,012,254

$ 14,085,403
4,169,362

847,158
2,618,556
6,324,283
1,984,119

547,257
2,46Q,384
1,400,000

$ 16,033,558
4,210,658

923,727
1,874,497
6,457,295
2,244,467

436,741
975,478

1,400,000
$ 34,436,522 $ 34,556,421

$ 32.151,472 $ 37.623,190

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures $ (139,218) $ (564,044) $ (3,066,769)

6,057,219
6,683,343

252,322
4,336,496

2,469,573
3,151,579

3,605,000
1,239,970
4,355,970

$ 3,554,596

(13,450)

(3,4S5,00;;
4,438,310
(4,754,718)

$ 6,288,812
6,987,749

50,921
4,246,829

2,600,174
3,075,636

4,025,954
1,067,520
6,656,971

$ 35,000,566

$ 2,355,000_

(14,1 30)
1,200,000

3,777,372
(3,822,938)

6,692,528
7,364,214

135,160
4,756,551

2,523,565
3,455,372

3,408,713
1,029,414
8,257,673

$ 5,450,000_

(17,594)

7,349,86;
(6,824,892)

$ (260,262)

$ (399,480)

17.4%
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$ 3,495,304
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$ 5,957,375

$ 2,890,606
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FiscalYear

2006 2007 2010

$ 17,186,164
4,712,426

982,954
2,425,140
6,834,840
2,589,376

652,321
437,966

$ 18,931,049
4,564,009

785,116
2,924,080
7,047,600
2,787,909

466,199
648,118

1,400,000
$ 39,554,080

$ 19,459,594
5,032,798
1,031,667
2,868,337
9,153,104
2,827,076

421,274
803,161

$ 20,994,332
5,338,098

767,938
2,421,181

10,189,992
2,969,223

436,578
994,537

$ 22,066,237
5,029,677
1,106,716
1,640,456

12,351,723
3,115,157

373,752
1,057,446

1,400,000 1,500,000 1,524,990

$ 42,997,011 $ 45,611,879 $ 48,266j54
1.400,000

$ 37,221,187

7,173,967
7,595,353

199,164
5,277,687

2,384,359
3,814,373

2,920,000
937,274

7,373,826
7,928,949

838,1 85
5,330,482

2,345,866
3,929,548

3,040,000
916,414

7,996,188
7,282,523

87,286
5,536,483

2,529,313
4,168,161

2,850,000
806,181

7,551,507
7,783,897

163,528
6,065,698

2,253,O49
4,381,790

2,910,000
739,841

13.486,565
$ 45.335,875

$ 7,922,903
8,816,278

87,304
6,076,258

2,291,861
4,613,684

2,930,000
728,057

16,357,586
$ 49,823,931

$ (1,557 ,777)

$ 3,440,000
227,162

5,135,000
(28,724)_

(5,325,000)
1 1,017,106

(10,755,275)

9.612,287 5,392,998 9,857,325
$ 41,113,460$ 39,914,464 $ 37,096,268

$ (2,693,277) $ 2,457,812 _q 1,883,551 276.004

$ 2,835,000_ $

5,650,000
(43,274)-

(5,650,000)
5,999,757

(5,288,524)
5,914,848

(5,842,507)

$ 4,820,000_

(1,645,000)
(30,125)

8,358,264
(9,227,533)

10,291,922
(10,806,635)

$ 3,502,959

$ 809,682

$ 72,341

_q__?,530,1_q9_

14.60/o

$ 2.275,606 $ (514,713) $ 3,710,269

$_g-qe,157_ $__938,i0q_ s__2,152p_

11.4Yo
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Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Assessed and Taxable Value of Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Unaudited)

Real and Personal PropertyFor Fiscal
Year

Ending

Regular Agricultural Land

Taxable
Value

Assessed
Value

Taxable
Value

Assessed
ValueYear June 30,

2000 2oo1 $ 722,070,299 $ 1,154,915,581 $ 6,643,223 $ 6,897,310

2oo1 2oo2 747 ,955,311 1 ,181 ,469,596 6,866,680 6,866,680

2oo2 2oo3 794,505,253 1,367,280,273 7,149,530 7,149,530

2003 2oo4 817,896,980 1,420,200,646 6,926,500 6,926,500

2oo4 2005 903,439,479 1,668,483,277 5,418,730 5,418,730

2005 2006 920,739,030 1,732,108,902 5,347,650 5,347,650

2006 2oo7 985,250,869 1,925,987 ,344 5,771,140 5,771,140

2007 2008 1 ,018,530,684 2,008,358,826 5,453,530 5,453,530

2008 2009 1,098,295,277 2,246,385,815 5,438,677 6,036,1 10

2009 2o1o 1 ,150,078,051 2,330,760,155 5,525,128 5,886,760

Source: Black Hawk County Auditor's Office.

Note: Property in the city is reassessed every other year. Tax rates are per $1,000 of assessed

value.
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Taxable
Value

Assessed
Value

Total Taxable
Value as a

Percentage of
Assessed

Value

Total

Total
Direct
Tax
Rate

$ 728,713,522

754,821,991

801,654,783

824,823,480

908,858,209

926,086,680

991,022,009

1,023,984,214

1,103,733,954

1 ,155,603,179

$ 1,161,812,891

1,188,336,276

1,374,429,803

1,427 ,127 ,146

1,673,902,007

1,737,456,552

1,931 ,758,484

2,013,812,356

2,252,421,925

2,336,646,915

62.72 %

63.52

58.33

57.80

54.30

53.30

51.30

50.85

49.00

49.46

s 14.12498

14.10036

13.65069

14.10410

13.65325

14.05084

13.84420

13.60793

13.26327

13.02110
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Property Tax Rates

Di rect and Overlapping Governments
Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

City of Cedar Falls

Overlapping Rates

Black Hawk County

Fiscal
Year

Debt
Service

11.19250 $ 2.93248

11.21875 2.88161

11.85892 1.79177

11.93225 2.17185

11.85492 1.79833

12.39156 1 .65928

12.51746 1.32674

12.41427 1.19366

11.94886 1.31441

Operating
Millage

Total City
Millage

$ 14.12498

14.10036

'13.65069

14.10410

13.65325

14.05084

13.84420

13.60793

13.26327

13.02110

Operating
Millage

$ 6.78238 $

7.08003

7.01176

7.15152

6.90953

7.04780

6.83182

6.82613

6.35616

6.12831

Total
County
Millage

$ 7.32113

7.68900

7.61897

7.74621

7.49237

7.60832

7.38966

7.41020

6.93591

6.70520

Debt
Service

2001 $

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

0.53875

0.60897

0.60721

0.59469

0.58284

0.56052

0.55784

0.58407

0.57975

0.576892010 11.82625 1 .19485
Source: Black Hawk County Auditor's Office.

Note: The city's general fund maximum property tax rate may only be $8.10 per $1 ,000 of

valuation. The remaining portion of the operating rate and the rate for debt service are

set based on each year's requirements.
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Operating
Millage

$ 12.84387

13.63050

13.95173

13.91234

13.00577

13.02846

13.02447

13.13283

13.73251

13.73228

Total
School
Millage

$ 12.84387 $

13.63050

13.95173

13.91234

13.00577

13.02846

13.02447

13.13283

13.73251

13.73228

1.08713

1.13630

1.17929

1.13876

1.36743

1.42197

1.34392

1.18405

1.36422

1.33721

Total

35.37711

36.55616

36.40068

36.90141

35.51882

36.10959

35.60225

35.33501

35.29591

34.79579

Debt
Service
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Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa
Pri nci pal Property TaxpaYers

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

2001

Taxpaver

Assessed

Valuation for

Levy Year

2000 -2001 Rank

Percentage

of Total

Assessed

Valuation

Target Corporation

Cedar Falls Utilities

College Square MallAssoc. LLC

R and N lnvestments

Twenty Seventh Street Assoc, LLC

Panther Development, LLC

WB CF Assoc LTD Partners

Cedar Falls lnvestments, LLC

Walmart Re Business Trust

Christopherson, Jerry

Viking Pump

Deere & Company

Quest Corporation (US West, lnc)

Cedar Falls Retirement Residence

Farm & Fleet

Source: Black Hawk County Auditor's Office

6,091,360

29,610,250

6,690,020

4,779,990

5,075,370

8,881,770

8,971,830

5,590,078

6,855,470

5,833,160

0.52

2.55 %

0.58

0.41

0.44

0.76

0.77

0.48

0.59

0.50

6

1

5

10

I
3

2

B

4

7

88,379,298 7.60 %
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2010

Assessed

Valuation for

FiscalYear

2009 -2010 Rank

Percentage

of Total

Assessed

Valuation

57,466,920

44,113,987

35,725,000

14,048,770

12,971,000

12,878,120

10,682,000

10,315,240

9,690,220

9,496,790

$ 217,388,047

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

B

I
10

2A6 %

1.89

1.53

0.60

0.56

0.55

0.46

0.44

0.41

0.41

9.31 Yo
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Gity of Gedar Falls, lowa

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Unaudited)

Levy

Year

For Fiscal

Year

Ending

June 30,

Total

Tax Levy

Current

Tax

Collection

Percentage

of Current

Taxes

Collected

Delinquent

Tax

Collections

2000 2001 $ 10,462,320

2001 2002 10,804,380

2002 2003 11,051,455

2003 2004 11,796,749

2004 2005 12,646,619

2005 2006 13,267,496

2006 2007 13,963,307

2007 2008 14,161,581

2008 2009 14,989,920

2009 2010 15,398,267
Source: Black Hawk County Auditor's Office.

$ 10,515,407

10,858,889

11,120,412

11,824,764

12,643,423

13,397,500

14,007,960

14,121,273

14,916,837

15,372,363

100.51 %

100.50

100.62

100.24

99.97

100.98

100.32

99.72

99.51

99.83

$ 1,455

1,791

246

104
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Total Tax

Collections as

a Percentage Outstanding

of Total

Delinquent

Taxes as a

Percentage

of TotalTotal Tax

Collections

Delinquent

Tax Levy Taxes Tax Levy

$ 10,516,862

10,860,680

11,120,658

11,824,868

12,643,423

13,397,500

14,007,960

14,121,273

14,916,837

15,372,363

100.52 %

100.52

100.63

100.24

99.97

100.98

100.32

99.72

99.51

99.83

$ 137,121

126,374

111,382

84,733

84,230

56,511

48,550

47,296

45,039

39,266

1.31 o/o

1.17

1.01

0.72

0.67

0.43

0.35

0.33

0.30

0.26
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Fiscal

Year

General

Obligation

Bonds

$ 19,945,000

21,615,000

18,750,000

19,210,000

16,115,000

16,860,000

14,670,000

11,055,000

9,435,000

5,360,000

City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Ratios of Outstanding Debt bY TYPe

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Govern mental Activities

Tax

lncrement

Financing

Bonds

$ 2,310,000

4,955,000

4,280,000

3,115,000

7,225,000

6,395,000

5,545,000

4,665,000

3,760,000

2,865,000

$ 365,000

Business-Type Activities

Capital

Loan

Note

General

Obligation

Bonds

$ 4,185,000

4,090,000

3,505,000

2,850,000

2,160,000

2,980,000

2,270,000

5,825,000

5,285,000

4,735,000

Revenue

Bonds

$ 4,905,000

3,590,000

3,200,000

4,705,000

4,075,000

3,420,000

2,740,000

1,005,000

765,000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

4,820,000

4,435,000

9,725,000

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements.

r Population and personal income data can be found on page 131.
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Total

Primary

Government

Percentage

of Personal

lncomel

Per

Capital

848

950

824

795

813

814

692

728

619

588

$ 30,710,000

34,250,000

29,735,000

28,880,000

29,575,000

29,655,000

25,225,000

27,370,000

23,680,000

22,685,000

3.64 o/o

3.83

3.20

2.96

2.95

2.60

2.15

2.15

1.89

1.66
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City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Ratios of General Bonded Debt Outstanding

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal

Year

General

Obligation

Debt

$ 25,805,000

30,660,000

26,535,000

24,175,000

25,500,000

26,235,000

22,485,000

26,365,000

22,915,000

22,685,000

Taxable

Value of

Property

$ 728,713,522

754,821,991

801,654,783

824,823,480

908,858,209

926,086,680

991,022,009

1,023,984,214

1,103,733,954

1 ,1 55,603,1 79

Percentage

Taxable Value

of Propedy

3.54 %

4.06

3.31

2.93

2.81

2.83

2.27

2.57

2.08

1.96

Assessed

Value of

Property

$ 1,161,812,891

1,188,336,276

1,374,429,803

1,427 ,127 ,146

1,673,902,007

1,737,456,552

1,931 ,758,484

2,013,812,356

2,252,421,925

2,336,646,915

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the

financial statements.

1 lncludes only general obligation debt supported by property tax dollars.
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Percentage

Assessed

Value

of Property

2.22 %

2.58

1.93

1.69

1.52

1.51

1.16

1.31

1.02

0.97

Per

Capita

712.24

850.34

735.65

665.19

700.93

720.41

617.23

701.51

599.01

588.33
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Direct and Overlapping Debt

As of June 30, 2010

Net General
Obligation Percentage

Bonded Debt Applicabfe
Outstanding to CityJurisdiction

Direct, City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Overlapping:

Black Hawk County

Cedar Falls Public School District

Area Vll Hawkeye Community College

Total Overlapping

Total

$ 17,950,000 100.00 % $ 17,950,000

$ 28,120,000 $ 8,697,516

Amount
Applicable

to
Government

1,151,783

$ 9,849,299

$ 27,799,299_

6,325,000

$ 34,445,000

30.93

18.21

$ 52,395,000

Source: Black Hawk County Auditor

Note: Overlapping governments are those that coincide, at least in part, with the geographic

boundaries of the city. This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those
overlapping governments that is borne by the residents and businesses of Cedar Falls. This
process recognizes that, when considering the city's ability to issue and repay long-term debt,
the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be taken into account.
However, this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident, and therefore responsible for
repaying the debt, of each overlapping government.
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City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Legal Debt Margin lnformation

Last Ten Fiscal Years

FiscalYear

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Debt Limit $ 58,090,645 $ 59,416,814 $ 68,721,490 $ 2t,356,357 $ 83,695,100

Total net debt
applicable to limit 29,685,000 34,295,000 29,920,000 27,265,000 28,260,000

Legal debt margin $ 28,405,645 $ 25,121,814 $ 38,801,490 $.=. 44,091,357 
-q_55,4354q-

Total net debt
applicable to
the limit as a
percentage of
of debt limit 51.10o/o 57.72%o 43.54o/o 38.21% 33.77o/o

Note: Under lowa code, the city's outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed

5 percent of total assessed property value.
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FiscalYear

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

$ 86,872,828 $

28,660,000

96,587,924 $ 100,807,511 $ 114,324,931 S

24,555,000 28,070,000 24,235,000

118,846,750

25,005,000

$ 58,212,828

32.99o/o

Estimated actual valuation

Debt limit - 5o/o of total actual valuation
Debt applicable to debt limit:

General obligation bonds
General obligation bonds - component unit

Legal debt margin

72,032,924 s_a;rc7,51 1 -q-90,qq9,931- $--99,841'759-

25.42o/o 27.85o/o 21.20% 21.04%

Legal Debt Margin Galculation for FiscalYear 2010

$ 118,846,750

22,685,000
2,320,000

$ 93,841,750
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Revenue Bond Coverage

Sewer Authority
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year

Gross
Revenues

Less:
Operating

Expenses 1

s 1,487,413

1,553,672

1,523,040

1,533,885

1,622,886

2,021,641

2,350,397

1,977 ,204

2,077,587

2,076,689

Net Revenue
Available
for Debt
Service

$ 2,537,012

2,384,657

2,260,670

2,301,827

2,320,510

2,096,594

1,806,941

2,093,415

2,092,378

1,989,421

Debt Service Requirements 
2

Principal

$ 1,255,000

1 ,315,000

390,000

395,000

630,000

655,000

680,000

1,735,000

240,000

765,000

lnterest

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

8 4,024,425

3,938,329

3,783,710

3,835,712

3,943,396

4,118,235

4,157,338

4,070,619

4,169,965

4,066,1 10

$ 305,434

257,545

193,405

172,735

212,068

175,227

146,788

116,368

28,583

22,103

Note: Details regarding the city's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial

statements.

t Net of depreciation, interest, and debt service transfers.

2 Includes principal and interest of revenue bonds only.
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Debt Service
Requirements2

Total

$ 1,560,434

1,572,545

583,405

567,735

842,068

830,227

826,788

1,851,368

268,583

787,103

Coverage

1.63

1.52

3.87

4.05

2.76

2.53

2.19

1.13

7.79

2.53
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Sales History and Total Sewer Charges

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2000 - 01

2001 -02

2002 - 03

2003 - 04

2004 - 05

2005 - 06

2006 -07

2007 - 08

2008 - 09

2009 - 10

Water
Sales (CCF)

1,628,644

1,589,986

1,683,593

1,868,675

1,700,179

1,737,946

1,695,516

1,765,541

1,873,290

1,523,683

Sewer
Charges

$ 3,367,856

3,549,232

3,547,913

3,686,981

3,603,778

3,644,514

3,694,725

4,492,230

4,666,695

4,665,753

Fiscal
Year

Source: Cedar Falls Utilities
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City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Water Meter by Rate Glass

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal
Year Residential Commercial lndustrial Government Other Total

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

9,426

9,607

9,903

10,057

10,313

10,548

10,878

11,445

11,258

11,529

805

820

854

866

889

920

948

983

972

984

168

173

168

168

164

175

177

195

197

196

10,444

10,643

10,967

11,133

11,407

11,682

12,041

12,664

12,465

12,746

42

40

39

39

38

36

35

38

35

34

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3

3
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Largest Sewer Customers

Fiscal Year 2010

Water
Sales
(ccF)

1 10,118

24,034

22,040

18,124

11,967

11,314

10,888

10,573

10,049

9,528

9,031

8,948

Percent of
TotalWater

Sales

Percent of
Sewer Total Sewer
Charges ChargesCustomer

University of Northern lowa

Western Home Communities

Country Terrace MHP LLC

Target Corporation

Metokote Corporation

Sartori Mem. Hospital lnc.

College Park Mills

Lutheran Home

Nazareth Lutheran Church

CF Schools

Holiday lnn

Gold Falls Villa Apts.

Total 2010 CCF
Total 2010 Billings

7.23 o/o

1.58

1.45

1.19

0.79

0.74

0.71

0.69

0.66

0.63

0.59

0.59

229,916

82,846

83,274

52,544

22,739

20,602

34,166

30,714

20,121

25,428

17,197

47,857

4.93 o/o

1.78

1.78

1.13

0.49

0.44

0.73

0.66

0.43

0.54

0.37

1.03

1,523,683
$4,665,753
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City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Galendar Years

Year Population

Personal

lncome

Per Capita
Personal

Incomei

Median

Age

School Unemploymenl

Enrollment Rate

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

36,231 843,675,066

36,056 894,008,520

36,070 928,730,360

36,343 975,664,178

36,380 1,001 ,577,780

36,417 1,140,981,027

36,429 1,174,398,102

37,583 1,271,771,137

38,255 1,251,129,775

38,558 1,365,261,664

23,286 26.0

24,795 26.0

25,748 26.0

26,846 26.0

27,531 25.7

31,331 25.7

32,238 25.7

33,839 25.7

32,705 25.7

35,408 25.4

4,322 3.0

4,339 3.3

4,385 3.8

4,437 4.0

4,393 3.7

4,435 2.9

4,502 2.3

4,501 2.6

4,515 3.2

4,678 4.2

Sources: Population provided by the US Census Bureau. School enrollment is supplied by the

Cedar Falls Board of Education. Unemployment data provided by the lowa Workforce.

Note: Population and median age information are based on surveys conducted during the

last quarter of the calendar year. Personal income information is a total for the year.

Unemployment rate information is an adjusted yearly average. School enrollment is based on

the census at the start of the school year.

t Per Capita lncome is based on Metropolitan Waterloo/Cedar Falls and based on figures from

Bureau of Economic Analysis.
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City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Principal EmPloYers

Gurrent Year and Nine Years Ago

Number of

2001

Rank

Percentage
of Total City

Employment

24.22%

15.08%

3.06%

2.48o/o

2.87%

0.66%

Q.610/o

1.74o/o

1.50%

1.32%

John Deere Product Engineer Center 2

Wheaton Franciscan Healthcare 2

University of Northern lowa

Hy-Vee Food Stores 2

Area Education Agency 267

Wal-Mart Super Center 2

Cedar Falls Community School District

City of Cedar FallsiMunicipal Utilities

Viking Pump lnc, Unit of lndex CorP.

Target Distribution

Wayne Engineering CorP.

Younkers, lnc

Martin Brothers Distributing Co., lnc

Sartori Hospital

The Western Home

Total

4,748

2,956

600

487

562

130

120

342

294

258

1

2

3

5

4

9

10

b

7

I
10,497

Source: Official Bond Statements from Public Financial Management, lnc.

1 Number of employees includes all full-time, part-time and seasonal employees.
2 Number of employees includes multiple locations in both Cedar Falls and Waterloo.

53.54o/o
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2010

Number of
Employeesl

Percentage
of Total City

Employment

24.54o/o

13.97o/o

8.56%

5.19%

5.14%

3.50%

3.08%

2.44%

2.22o/o

2.20o/o

Rank

5

6

7

I
o

10

5,300

3,018

1,850

1,121

1,110

755

666

527

480

475

1

2

3

4

15,302 70.84%
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Full-Time Equivalent City Government Employees by Function/Department
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

2001 2002 2003

Public Safety
Police
Fire
lnspection Services

Public Works
Streets
Parking Meter
Engineering

Culture and Recreation
Human & Leisure Administration
Cultural Services
Library
Cemetery
Golf
Parks
Recreation
Visitor & Tourism
Senior Services

Community & Economic DeveloPment
Developmental Services Admin.
Economic Development
Planning Seruices
Block Grant
Housing Vouchers
Section B Housing

General Government
Mayor's Office
Administrative Services Admin.
Financial Services
LegalServices
Personnel
Public Records
Cable TV
Print Shop
Pubtic Buildings

lnternal Service
lnformation Systems
Vehicle Maintenance

Sewer
Refuse
Storm Water

Total

Source: City's Financial Plans

53.15
34.80
6.00

21.32
3.15

13.60

2.80
9.20

14.80
4.60
6.00

22.60
308-5-

1.50
1.85
3.10
2.15
2.50-

1.50
1.50
5.65
3.00
2.50
3.50
3.80
1.00

13.18

3.00
6.40

17.00
15.65

52.85 49.89
35.10 35.40
6.00 6.00

21.57 24.00
3.05 3.05
13.60 13.60

2.50 2.00
10.40 10.50
14.80 14.80
4.40 4.40
5.60 5.60

18.00 18.00
31.05 31.05
1.80 2.40_

1.50 1.50
1.85 1.85
3.10 3.43
2.15 2.20
2.50_ 2.50

1.50 1.50
1.50 1.50
5.58 5.58
3.00 3.00
2.50 2.00
3.80 3.50
3.80 4.00
1.00 1.00

12.78 10.78

3.00 3.00
6.40 6.40

17.30 17.30
17.80 16.43
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2004

Full-Time Equivalent Employees as of June 30

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

49.89
34.60

6.00

24.82
3.10

13.60

2.00
9.05

14.80
4.40
6.40

16.20
31.05

2.40_

1.50
1.85
3.43
2.20
2.50_

1.50
1.50
4.95
3.00
2.00
3.50
4.00
1.00

11.31

3.00
6.40

17.30
16.50

49.89
34.60

6.00

24.35
3.10

11.60

2.00
8.81

16.20
4.60
7.15

18.68
31.05

2.60

1.50
1.85
3.43
2.20
2.50_

1.50
1.50
4.95
3.00
2.00
3.50
3.00
1.00

12.11

3.00
6.40

16.75
16.80

50.89
35.60

6.50

25.35
3.10

11.60

2.25
8.81

16.20
4.60
7.15

18.68
31.05

2.60

1.50
1.85
3.43
2.20
2.50-

1.50
1.50
4.95
2.00
2.00
3.50
4.00
1.00

14.11

51.49
35.65
6.50

24.37
3.66

11.57

2.25
8.00

17.53
4.60
5.50

18.48
30.88
2.90
0.50

1.50
1.77
3.68
2.17
1.79_

1.50
1.50
5.95
3.00

3.45
4.30
1.00

14.71

51.69
35.65

6.40

24.37
3.61

11.42

2.25
8.00

17.25
4.60
4.70

18.90
32.23
2.90
0.50

1.50
2.10
3.68
1.84
1.79

53.44 52.69
35.65 35.65
6.40 7.40

20.56 20.56
3.61 3.61

11.42 11.42

2.25 2.25
8.00 8.20
17.25 17.55
4.60 4.60
4.90 5.30

20.10 20j0
33.50 34.26
3.20 3.20
1.23 1.23

1.50 1.50
2.26 2.00
3.68 3.68
1.68 1.69
1.79 1.84

4.00 4.00
6.40 6.10

16.88 16.30
15.80 17.80

1.50 1.50
1.50 1.50
6.45 6.45
3.00 3.00

3.70 3.70
4.50 4.50
1.00 1.00

15.25 15.25

4.00 4.00
6.10 6.10
16.72 18.38
17.80 19.30

1.50
1.50
6.45
3.00

3.70
4.50
1.00

15.25

4.00
6.10

18.38
19.30

3.303.303.25

317.65

3.30

305.75 307.62 313.50
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City of Gedar Falls, lowa
Operating lndicators by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Public Safety

Police

Physical arrests

Traffic violations

Parking violations

Fire

Number of calls answered

lnspections conducted

Sewer

Sewage System

Daily average treatment in gallons

Daily average consumption in gallons

Maximum daily capacity of plant in gallons

Refusel

Solid Waste

32 Gallon Containers

68 Gallon Containers

95 Gallon Containers

Yard Waste

95 Gallon Containers

Sources: Various city departments

t Stat¡stics begin in FY04

FiscalYear

2001 2002 2003

1,299 1,386 1,485

3,960 3,959 4,033

49,613 48,613 42,162

1,393 1,435 1,554

2,314 4,554 3,367

3,773,582 3,783,126 3,800,209

21,600,000 21,600,000 21,600,000

5,800,000 4,750,000 4,120,000

Maximum daily capacity of treatment plant in gallons 21,600,000 21,600,000 21,600,000

Water System
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FiscalYear

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

4,120,000 4,600,000

21,600,000 21,600,000

3,800,209 3,439,943

21,600,000 21,600,000

1,672

5,453

37,260

1,511

2,166

1,616

6,007

34,056

1,452

1,807

1,670

4,705

29,952

1,599

2,517

4,550,000

21,600,000

3,636,258

21,600,000

1,421

2,562

25,575

1,925

2,331

5,730,000

21,600,000

3,379,708

21,600,000

1,353

7,267

26,354

1,936

2,470

6,510,000

21,600,000

3,660,000

21,600,000

1,501

3,544

25,267

2,016

2,076

3,735

6,337

1,876

5,999

1,403

3,237

21,726

1,937

3,750

4,047

6,490

1,998

6,281

5,130,000 5,726,000

21,600,000 21,600,000

4,1 10,000 4,135,000

21,600,000 22,813,000

3,1 55

5,679

1,093

4,499

3,299

5,903

1,284

4,924

3,344

5,997

1,464

5,280

3,382

6,169

1,652

5,575

3,529

6,273

1,760

5,769
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City of Cedar Falls, lowa
Capital Asset Statistics by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

FiscalYear

2001 2002 2003 2004 2005

Public safety

Police

Stations

PatrolUnits

Fire

Stations

Fire apparatus 
r

Public works

Streets

Miles

Street lights

Health and social services

Hospital

Number of patient beds

Cultural and Recreation

Hearst Center for the Arts

Library

Cemeteries

Acreage

Golf

Miniature golf course

Parks

Acreage

Recreation

Recreation Center

Swimming pools

Softballfields

Baseballfields

Tennis courts

Sewer

Sewage System

Miles of sanitary sewer

Miles of storm sewers

Number of treatment plants

Number of service connectors

Water Systems

Miles of water mains

Number of service connectors

Number of city owned fìre hydrants

Sources: Various city departments
I Number of fire trucks statistic was not kept in prior years

1

I

2

200

2,588

1

101

1

1

3

56.9

3

1

34

1,116

1

3

6

3

6

1

12

2

I

200

2,609

1

101

1

1

3

56.9

3

1

34

1,116

1

3

I
2

b

1

12

2

8

200

2,642

1

101

1

1

3

56.9

3

1

34

1,116

1

3

I
2

6

1

12

2

I

200

2,670

1

101

1

1

ó

56.9

3

1

34

1,116

1

3

I
2

6

203

2,695

1

101

1

1

3

5ô.9

3

1

34

1,116

1

3

I
2

6

1

12

2

I

150

160

1

12,762

164.02

10,444

1,427

150

160

1

10,790

167.00

10,643

1,468

160

160

1

11,039

169.00

10,967

1,503

160

160

1

11,039

169.00

10,967

1,503

162

161

1

11,039

175.30

11,407

1,593
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FiscalYear

2006 2007 2008 2009 2010

1

10

1

I

1

10

2

I

1

10

2

8

1

10

2

8

1

101

1

10

2

I

205
2,705

1

101

1

1

3

56.9

3

1

34

1,116

1

3

I
2

6

210

2,856

1

101

1

1

3

56.9

3

34

1,116

1

3

8

2

6

215

2,998

1

101

1

1

3

56.9

3

34

1,136

1

3

8

2

b

1

101

217 217

3,025 3,048

11
11
33

56.9 56.9

22

34 34

1,136 1,136

1

3

I
2

6

178.62 178.99

171.2 171.4

11
12,145 12,187

1

3

9

2

6

163

162

1

11,æ9

184.70

11,682

1,717

169

167

1

11,966

181.80

12,041

1,771

177

168

1

11,975

192.90 195.70 198.24

12,212 12,169 12,328

1,951 1,892 1,923
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CPAs &. BUSINESS ADVISORS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORT¡NG AND ON

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

G OVE RN M E NT A U D ITI N G S TAAIDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and

Members of the City Council
City of Cedar Falls, lowa

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 8, 2010.
We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States.

lnternal Control Over Financial Reportinq
ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting as a
basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal control
over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City's internal
control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in

internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the City's financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or materialweaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be materialweaknesses, as defined
above.
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Comoliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's financial statements are free of material

misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and

grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material etfect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an

objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing

Standards.

Comments involving statutory and other legal matters about the City's operations for the year ended June 30,

2010, are based exclusively on knowledge obtained from procedures performed during our audit of the
financial statements of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, and are reported in Part ll of the accompanying Schedule

of Findings and Questioned Costs. Since our audit was based on tests and samples, not all transactions that
might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited. The comments involving statutory and

other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal interpretations of those statutes.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees,

and citizens of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, and other parties to whom the Ci$ of Cedar Falls, lowa, may

report, including federal awarding agencies and pass{hrough entities, and is not intended to be and should not

be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of the City of
Cedar Falls, lowa, during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of the above

matters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

Ö'-4t¿l
Dubuque, lowa
November 8, 2010
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS THAT COULD HAVE
A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE
WITH OMB C¡RCULARA.I33

To the Honorable Mayor and

Members of the City Council
City of Cedar Falls, lowa

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, with the types of compliance requirements
described in the OMB CircularA-133 Compliance Supplemenf that could have a direct and material effect on
each of the City's major federal programs for the year ended June 30,2010. The City's major federal
programs are identified in the summary of the independent auditor's results section of the accompanying
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the City's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Sfandards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133. Those standards and OMB
Circular A-133 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material
effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary
in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does
not provide a legaldetermination on the City's compliance with those requirements.

ln our opinion, the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, complied, in all material respects, with the compliance
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal
programs for the year ended June 30, 2010.

www.eideboilly.com
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lnternal Control Over Compliance
Management of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal

control over compliance with requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to federal
programs. ln planning and performing our audit, we considered the CiÇ's internal control over compliance with

the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program to determine the

auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and report on internal

control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on

the effectiveness of the City's internal control over compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over

compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, non-compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal

program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or

combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that

material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not be prevented, or

detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over compliance

that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses. We did not identify any

deficiencies in internal control over compliance thatwe considerto be materialweaknesses, as defined above.

Schedule of Expenditures of FederalAwards
We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the

aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund

information of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2010, and have issued our

report thereon dated November 8, 2010. Our audit was performed for the purpose of forming our opinions on

the financial statements that collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required by

OMB Circular A-133 and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information has been

subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion,
is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials, employees,
and citizens of the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, and other parties to whom the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, may

report, including federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities, and is not intended to be and should not

be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Ö'-4t¿l
Dubuque, lowa
November 8,2010



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDIÏURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OIO

Grantor/Proqram

Agency or
CFDA Pass{hrough Program

Number Number Expenditures

Department of Commerce:

Direct Program:
Econom ic Adj ustment Assistance

Department of Housing and Urban Development:

Direct Program:
Community Development Block Grants/

Entitlement Grants
Pass-through program from:

lowa Department of Economic Development
Community Development Block Grants/

State's Program
Community Development Block Grants/

State's Program
Community Development Block Grants/

State's Program
Community Development Block Grants/

State's Program
Community Development Block Grants/

State's Program
Community Development Block Grants/

State's Program
Pass-through program from:

City of Waterloo, lowa

Department of Justice:

Direct Program:
Bulletproof Vest Partnership Program

ARRA - Public Safety Partnership and

Community Policing Grants

Total Department of Justice

ARRA Entitlement Grants (CDBG-R) 14.253
Direct Program:

Section I Housing Choice Vouchers 14.871

Total Department of Housing and Urban Development

11.307 $ 705,530

14.218 197,763

14.228 08-DRHB-227 14,038

14.228 08-DRH-007 839,026

14.228 08-DRHB-086 59,776

14.228

14.228

69,204

928,219

3.465.297

08-DRt-240 4,226

14.228 08-DRHM-014 1,180,671

08-DRB-202 154,444

HOME lnvestment Partnerships Program 14.239 M01DC190206 17,930
Direct Program:

ARRA - Community Development Block Grants

16.607

16.710

3,750

28,177

31,927

(continued)



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF EXPEND¡TURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OIO

Grantor/Proqram
CFDA

Number

Agency or
Pass{hrough

Number
Program

Expenditures

Department of Transportation :

Pass-through program from:
lowa Department of Transportation:

ARRA - Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction
Highway Planning and Construction

Pass-through program from:
lowa Department of Public Safety

State and Community Highway Safety
State and Community Highway Safety

Total Department of Transportation

Department of Energy:

Direct Program:

ARRA - Energy Efficiency and Conservation
Block Grant Program

Department of Education:

Pass{hrough program from:
lowa Department of Transportation :

ARRA - State Fiscal Stabilization Fund -

Government Services

Department of Homeland Security:
Pass-through program from:

lowa Department of Homeland Security
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance
Disaster Grants - Public Assistance

Direct Program:
Assistance to Firefighters Grant

Total Department of Homeland Security

Total

ESL-1 185(641)--7s-07
STP-U-1 1 85(63r )--70-07

EDP-1 185(637)--7Y-07
sTP-E-1 I 85(638)--8V-07
sTP- U - 1 1 85(625) --7 0 -07
sTP-U-1 r 85(635)--70-07

20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205
20.205

20.600
20.600

81.128

84.397

$ 83,872
27,599
32,568
19,452
5,194

19,759

1 0-04
09-04

4,775
1,028

194,247

97.036 FEMA-|A DR-1688
97.036 FEMA-|A DR-1763
97.036 DR-o1763-07-01
97.036 HMGP-DR-1763-001401
97.036 FEMA-IA DR-1854
97.036 DR-r 763-rA-013-1 1755-00
97.036 DR-1763-lA;01RJD03

97.044

29,245

s397A090016A 43j62

5,460
149,796
179,328

3,542,014
380,283

83,222
152,305

20,340

4,512,748

$ 8,982,156

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of FederalAwards.



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS,IOWA

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O1O

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the City of
Cedar Falls, lowa, and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information on this schedule is
presented in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule may differ from amounts
presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.

NOTE 2. SUBRECIPIENTS

Of the federal expenditures presented in the schedule, the City of Cedar Falls, lowa, provided federal awards to
subrecipients as follows:

Program Title
FederalCFDA Amount Provided

Number to Subrecipients

Community Development Block Grants/
Entitlement Grants

Public Safety Partnership and Community
Policing Grants (Recovery Act Funded)

14.218

16.710

$ 39,870

$ 28,177



CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2OIO

Part l: Summarv of the Independent Auditor's Results:

Financial Statements
Type of auditor's report issued Unqualified

lnternal control over financial reporting:
Materialweakness identified No
Significant deficiency None reported

Noncompliance material to financiaf statements noted No

FederalAwards
lnternal control over major programs:

Materialweakness identified No
Significant deficiency None reported

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs Unqualified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in

accordance with Circular A-133, Section .510(a) No

ldentification of major programs:

CFDA Number Name of Federal Proqram or Cluster
11.307 Economic Adjustment Assistance

Cluster
14.218 Community Development Block Grants/

Entitlement Grants
14.253 Community Development Block Grants

ARRA Entitlement Grants (CDBG-R)
(Recovery Act Funded)

14.228 Community Development Block Grants/
State's Program

20.205 Highway Planning and Construction

Dollar threshold used to distinguish
between Type A and Type B programs $300,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee Yes

Part ll: Other Findings Related to Required Statutorv Reportinq:

ll-A-10 Certified Budqet - Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2010, did not exceed the amount

budgeted.

(continued)
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CITY OF CEDAR FALLS, IOWA

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2O1O

Part ll: Other Findinqs Related to Required Statutorv Reportinq: (continued)

ll-B-10 Questionable Expenditures - We noted no expenditures that we believe may fail to meet the

requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General's opinion dated April 25,1979.

ll-C-10 Travel Expense - No expenditures of City money for travel expenses of spouses of City officials or

employees were noted.

ll-D-10 Business Transactions - Business transactions between the City and City officials or employees are
detailed as follows:

Name, Title, and Transaction
Business Connection Descriotion Amount

Dave deBuhr, owner of Dave's Custom Services $ 285
Fabricating, spouse of Susan deBuhr,
councilmember

ln accordance with Chapter 362.5(10) of the Code of lowa, the above transaction does not appear
to represent a conflict of interest since total transaction was less than $1,500 during the fiscal year.

ll-E-10 Bond Coveraqe - Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees is in accordance with

statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually to insure that the

coverage is adequate for current operations.

ll-F-10 Council Minutes - No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in the

Council minutes but were not.

ll-G-10 Deposits and lnvestments - No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and investment
provisions of Chapters 128 and 12C ot the Code of lowa and the City's investment policy were

noted.

ll-H-10 Revenue Bonds - No instances of non-compliance with the provisions of the City's revenue bond

resolutions were noted.
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